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          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Good morning.

          3  This is a meeting of the Youth Services Committee of

          4  the City Council. My name is Ken Fisher. I am joined

          5  by Council Members Espada, Perkins, Boyland, Stabile

          6  and Robinson, who is also the Chair of our

          7  Subcommittee on Juvenile Justice.

          8                 Today's hearings will focus on the

          9  Mayor's Management Report. It is a Charter mandated

         10  series of indicators to measure the performance of

         11  City agencies.

         12                 We will begin with the Department of

         13  Youth Services, and I would ask Acting Commissioner

         14  Mitchell to identify herself and her team and

         15  proceed with her testimony.

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: Good

         17  afternoon, Mr. Chairman, and members of the Council

         18  Committee on Youth Services. I am here accompanied

         19  today by Deputy Carlton Mitchell.

         20                 I am pleased to be here to report on

         21  the progress the Department of Youth and Community

         22  Development has made during the past year.

         23                 During FY '99, DYCD continued to make

         24  great strides expanding such notable programs like

         25  the beacons and creating new programs to serve the
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          2  runaway and homeless youth populations, and altered

          3  Citizenship New York City's focus, to meet the ever

          4  changing needs of immigrant New Yorkers.

          5                 In FY 1999, DYCD youth programs serve

          6  close to a million young people, 998,594, for

          7  operating programs such as the beacons, the Safe

          8  Street - Safe City initiatives, and NYA Youthlink,

          9  the Street Outreach and Youthline.

         10                 Our very successful beacon program

         11  provided services to 152,856 young people throughout

         12  the City last year.

         13                 The Department expanded the number of

         14  beacons from 41 in FY '98 to 76 in FY '99, and to 82

         15  in FY 2000 meeting the Department's objective.

         16                 As you know, an evaluation of the

         17  beacon program is being conducted by the Academy for

         18  Educational Development, the Hunter College Center

         19  on AIDS, Drugs and Community Health and Chapin Hall

         20  Center for Children.

         21                 AED is the prime organizer and

         22  manager of the evaluation team, who will provide

         23  information and insights that can help improve the

         24  Beacon initiative as a whole and the individual

         25  beacons in New York City.
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          2                 A preliminary finding indicated that

          3  beacons attract participants of all ages, encourage

          4  positive youth development and provide extensive

          5  educational enrichment.

          6                 It also found that beacons provide an

          7  array of programs for families and adults, provide a

          8  safe haven and a forum for problem solving for

          9  community residents; and help young people avoid

         10  negative, anti-social behavior, such as drug use and

         11  fighting. This evaluation is in the final stages. We

         12  have one more year to go.

         13                 In FY '99, the Department released

         14  its Youth Violence Intervention RFP to fund programs

         15  aimed at individuals aged nine to 21 that are

         16  affected by violence and reside in low-income

         17  communities throughout the City. Ten programs began

         18  in September '99 to help youth develop constructive

         19  peer relation skills. This training is used to

         20  provide alternatives to violence by teaching

         21  conflict resolution and mediation skills, and

         22  strengthening family relationship.

         23                 The special initiatives funded

         24  through the community service block grant program is

         25  also geared to reinforce community values.
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          2                 As part of the agency's new approach

          3  to addressing the need of homeless youth, in May

          4  1999, a new DYCD runaway and homeless youth shelter

          5  for male and female youth aged 16 to 20 was

          6  established with the Center for children and

          7  families.

          8                 The shelter's focus is to remove

          9  youth from immediate risk off of case management and

         10  day treatment services and prepare them for

         11  placement in more stable living environments.

         12                 The shelter contains 16 beds, which

         13  can be used for either male or female youth. Six

         14  beds were established in Fiscal 1999 and are in

         15  operation at 100 percent utilization.

         16                 Ten beds are expected to be certified

         17  by the State in December '99, however we have

         18  requested that five of these beds gain certification

         19  earlier.

         20                 As the result of a review of current

         21  outreach and shelter programs, the decision was made

         22  to reconfigure services to enable us to provide a

         23  more comprehensive continuum of care.

         24                 DYCD released an RFP during the month

         25  of October '99, designed to focus specifically on
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          2  runaway and homeless youth thus enabling us to

          3  address a host of important issues affecting this

          4  very vulnerable population.

          5                 The comprehensive nature of this

          6  system will strengthen our commitment to homeless

          7  youth.

          8                 Under this RFP, the non-residential

          9  runaway and homeless youth program contract will

         10  provide street outreach and referral service

         11  programs, as well as a drop-in center.

         12                 The drop-in center and runaway and

         13  homeless youth hot line unit will operate 24 hours

         14  daily, seven days a week, 52 weeks a year. The

         15  runaway and homeless residential program contract

         16  will provide crisis shelters and transitional

         17  independent living for homeless youth up to the age

         18  of 21.

         19                 The Congregate Crisis Shelter will be

         20  a Citywide service facility operating 24 hours a day

         21  seven days a week, 52 weeks a year for youth up to

         22  the age of 18.

         23                 The site will accommodate up to 30

         24  beds. The Apartment Crisis Shelter model will have a

         25  minimum of 20 beds for youth between the ages of 16
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          2  and 21.

          3                 The Transitional Independent Living

          4  Program will provide services on a Citywide basis.

          5  Contractors will operate a 15 to 20-bed group

          6  residence for youth between the ages of 16 and 20.

          7                 These sites will operate 24 hours a

          8  day, seven days a week, 52 weeks a year, as I said

          9  previously.

         10                 These programs are scheduled to begin

         11  in the spring of 2000.

         12                 New York City Youth Line, the

         13  Department's 24-hour toll free telephone information

         14  service for young people, parents, service providers

         15  and teachers received 83,962 calls during the past

         16  fiscal year. New York City Youthline staff consists

         17  of youth listeners, aged 16 to 24, who are

         18  supervised by trained social workers.

         19                 Calls are provided with information

         20  from Youthline's extensive database, which includes

         21  neighborhood specific information on topics such as

         22  library hours, day care centers, youth centers,

         23  schools, after school programs, museums and voting

         24  procedures.

         25                 In Fiscal '99, the Department
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          2  developed and implemented new New York City

          3  Youthline software. This software improves DYCD's

          4  ability to manage its extensive database of

          5  information about providers to correspond with

          6  providers to produce computer-generated maps of

          7  service areas with public transportation routes

          8  superimposed on them, and to generate statistical

          9  reports on the types of calls received.

         10                 In Fiscal 2000, the Department plans

         11  to make this application available over the

         12  Internet.

         13                 In collaboration with other City

         14  agencies and non-profit organizations during FY '99,

         15  DYCD provided alternatives to violence and

         16  intervention strategy training to the staff of New

         17  York City Youthline and contracted community-based

         18  organizations.

         19                 After receiving training, Youthline

         20  staff provided training on teen dating violence and

         21  gang violence prevention to young people housed in

         22  DYCD's homeless and runaway shelter programs.

         23                 DYCD has made the topic of teen

         24  dating violence a permanent part of its training

         25  requirement for all contracted homeless and runaway
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          2  shelter programs.

          3                 In FY '99, New York City Youthline

          4  continued to provide public schools Citywide with

          5  peer training on issues such as conflict mediation,

          6  domestic violence, child abuse and neglect and teen

          7  dating violence.

          8                 In FY '99 Youthline also provided

          9  customer service training for the staff of City

         10  agencies who answer calls from the TTY devices for

         11  the hearing impaired. It trained approximately 106

         12  individuals on the correct operation of the devices,

         13  as well as on appropriate protocols for addressing

         14  issues raised by callers.

         15                 In FY 2000 Youthline has scheduled

         16  this type of training for both the Police and the

         17  Fire Departments.

         18                 The neighborhood and development area

         19  RFP, which is funded with the community service

         20  block grant has been issued for a term of three

         21  years with contracts beginning July 1, 2000.

         22                 The RFP amount has increased from

         23  $40.2 million when last issued in April of '96 of

         24  $49.6 million as a result of increased federal

         25  funding.
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          2                 The fair share allocation was updated

          3  to include the most current available poverty

          4  statistics.

          5                 The deadline for proposals is

          6  December 14th, 1999.

          7                 In FY '99, the Department of Youth

          8  and Community Development DYCD, citizenship NYC,

          9  continued to reach out to approximately 92,858

         10  immigrants by telephone, mail and group

         11  presentation.

         12                 CNYC also established two field sites

         13  in Staten Island and Far Rockaway to better serve

         14  immigrants in these neighborhoods, in addition to

         15  providing services for immigrants in Lower

         16  Manhattan, through its central administrative

         17  office.

         18                 To date, a total of 16,155

         19  appointments have been scheduled in these centers,

         20  5,241 people have been referred to community-based

         21  organizations for services ranging from legal

         22  assistance to ESL classes, to Medicaid and CNYC has

         23  now filed 9,000 naturalization applications with the

         24  Immigration and Naturalization Service.

         25                 Beginning in January 1999, CNYC
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          2  intensified its outreach efforts, expanding its

          3  advertising with public service announcements on

          4  community and public access, television and radio

          5  stations. CNYC's Direct Outreach Program established

          6  in May 1999, provides application assistance to

          7  senior centers and community-based organizations.

          8                 Through this effort, 300 people have

          9  been served via visits to 18 organizations.

         10                 CNYC has made great strides in

         11  expanding its efforts to assist individuals to gain

         12  classification under Derivative Citizenship of

         13  N-600. Over 14,000 families were contacted during

         14  June and July 1999 to identify children who would

         15  lose food stamps benefits after they turn 18 years

         16  of age.

         17                 Approximately, 1,000 immigrant

         18  children have been provided assistance in applying

         19  for this designation, which will allow them to

         20  maintain social services benefits they would have

         21  lost otherwise.

         22                 In FY 2000, CNYC expects to assist

         23  23,000 immigrant families currently receiving Food

         24  Stamps to obtain citizenship for their children,

         25  therefore retaining their food stamp benefits. In
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          2  July 1999, CNYC sent out 14,000 letters to these

          3  families, encouraging them to call for an

          4  appointment. To date CNYC has helped file 239 forms

          5  for young people seeking to document their

          6  citizenship status.

          7                 In Fiscal 1999, DYCD implemented the

          8  first phase of its Comprehensive Contractor

          9  Management System, which enables the Department to

         10  track contracts all the way from the RFP stage to

         11  contract termination and final assessment.

         12                 In Fiscal 2000, DYCD intends to

         13  expend CCMS to implement electronic transmission and

         14  receipt of data, such as outcome reports to meet

         15  ROMA requirements from contract agencies.

         16                 Through a technical assistance

         17  provider, in April and May 1999, DYCD offered

         18  training to all of its contract agencies about Y2K

         19  readiness. The training reviewed Y2K readiness

         20  issues for computer systems, security systems, fire

         21  alarms, elevators and escalators, lighting control

         22  systems, time clocks and date stamping equipment,

         23  telephone equipment, and heating, ventilating and

         24  air conditioning systems.

         25                 It also covered Y2K issues related to
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          2  contracted payroll services and vendors.

          3                 Approximately 200 organizations took

          4  advantage of the training sessions. Prior to the end

          5  of Calendar Year 1999, DYCD will continue to

          6  distribute copies of the training curriculum to

          7  providers on an as-needed basis.

          8                 In closing, I would like to thank the

          9  Mayor, Deputy Mayor,

         10  Chairman Ken fisher and all of the members of the

         11  Youth Services Committee for their support in

         12  helping make DYCD a success. And I would be happy to

         13  answer your questions.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Thank you, Acting

         15  Commissioner.

         16                 Why don't I work my way down and then

         17  I will do mine at the end.

         18                 Council Member Boyland.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Thank you.

         20  And welcome, Commissioner.

         21                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: Thank

         22  you.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: First, I

         24  would like to commend you on all of the work that

         25  you have done within my community, especially New
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          2  York City Youthline. As we know, we did a wonderful

          3  conference at Medgar Evers College where New York

          4  City Youthline, Council Member Fisher and Robinson

          5  participated in, and the students were very pleased

          6  by the outcome of New York City Youthline and what

          7  they did in terms of providing information for our

          8  young people.

          9                 My question is, in the information

         10  that you gave on the DYCD runaway and homeless

         11  shelters, we have seen through listening from the

         12  Commissioner of DJJ as to how their shelter system

         13  is working in terms of the community outreach, in

         14  terms of how they get involved with the community

         15  board and the community surrounding the shelters and

         16  the questions and the issues that the community may

         17  have, how are you dealing with them? And are you

         18  working in connection with DJJ in terms of how you

         19  provide services for these youth?

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: First,

         21  let me talk a little bit about the process in terms

         22  of establishing a shelter, and let me say that these

         23  particular programs, which have been in existence

         24  about eight years now, so that the sites had been

         25  selected a number of years ago, but they cannot be
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          2  approved by the State and they have to be approved

          3  by the State Department of Social Service and the

          4  Office of Children and Families. They can't be

          5  approved unless the community board also approves of

          6  them, and so that the current existing sites, they

          7  all had initial community board sign-off.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay, so it

          9  goes to the community board, borough president.

         10                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: Yes.

         11  Whatever their process was eight years ago. So, I

         12  cannot tell you that, you know, every single

         13  community board where a shelter is, the people that

         14  are currently there were involved, but that was the

         15  process then.

         16                 With new programs, agencies have to

         17  come in with certified, with certification from the

         18  state, or get certification from the state prior to

         19  be selected to run a program.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay. And

         21  that was eight years ago. Now let's just say these

         22  are coming into fruition presently, so is there some

         23  sort of recertification? Are you reintroducing

         24  yourself to the community boards?

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: The
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          2  sites have to be certified by the state, and the

          3  involvement of community residents, and I don't know

          4  if all of them are required to have a hearing, they

          5  traditionally have hearings within the community

          6  boards, so that any organization selected to run a

          7  program must have input from community boards, but

          8  they must be as importantly certified by the state

          9  before they can actually have a shelter.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay. So that

         11  means that the state is participating, ACS from the

         12  City is also doing, the social workers are involved

         13  in the process?

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: We have

         15  some input from a number of agencies, although they

         16  don't, because this is a particular state-funded

         17  initiative, if we had some input in the development

         18  of RFP from DJJ as an example, from some staff

         19  people at ACS, and we work very closely with the

         20  State in terms of looking at the certification

         21  process and what they would need, or what the

         22  organizations would need to be able to be certified

         23  for these programs.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay, my last

         25  question is on beacon programs. You gave us an
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          2  update, you said in 1998, Fiscal Year 1998 there

          3  were 41, now in Fiscal Year 1999 there are 76,

          4  obviously there has been some increased funding for

          5  beacon programs, the assistance from the City

          6  Council and the City. Can you give us an update on

          7  the functions and operations? Have you approved of

          8  all of the beacon programs?

          9                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: We have

         10  released an RFP, I think as you know, we have

         11  actually released two, and we will have five more

         12  sites on board by the beginning of the year. And we

         13  can give you where those particular sites are,

         14  because we are just in the -- first of all, in the

         15  RFP, you know, we identified the districts anyway,

         16  the schools, but we will be able to very soon tell

         17  you who those organizations are that are being

         18  selected to operate those beacons.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: You say

         20  district, you mean every City Council district?

         21                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: And

         22  school district.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay.

         24                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: Yes,

         25  exactly.
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          2                 And those programs, the new group of

          3  programs are scheduled to begin in January.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Oh,

          5  wonderful.

          6                 Thank you very much.

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: You are

          8  welcome.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Council Member

         10  Stabile.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Yes, I have

         12  some questions on these new sites, I mean this is

         13  like a long time brewing, these sites. I mean, I

         14  think we are a little behind on these sites, aren't

         15  we?

         16                 I mean, I can remember back funding

         17  in 1998 where the Administration, we talked about it

         18  and the Administration was on board and for some

         19  reason, the RFP, the original RFP that was put out

         20  for these five was somehow pushed to the side, and

         21  we went to another RFP process?

         22                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: No,

         23  actually we were on schedule. We released them -- I

         24  think the one you are talking about was the big

         25  group when we added the additional --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: I am talking

          3  about the one we are basically scheduling for Junior

          4  High School 210.

          5                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: That we

          6  released in May?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: I believe so.

          8  Yes, somewhere around there.

          9                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: And we

         10  got the RFPs out for 40 days. We get it back in, we

         11  review the proposals, and then we go through the

         12  process in terms of determining whether or not the

         13  agencies are viable or whatever, that whole process

         14  of getting it approved by the oversights. And now we

         15  have finished that, and we have notified the

         16  organization who have been selected and so that

         17  those agencies, we would develop those contracts, go

         18  through a public hearing and those programs will

         19  start in January.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Because that

         21  will actually be the first one in my Council

         22  district. That will actually be the first one in

         23  that district.

         24                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: Right.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Up to date
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          2  that district has no beacon program, and we are

          3  covering part of South Ozone Park, Ozone Park,

          4  Woodhaven, Richmond Hill, Rockaways.

          5                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: Right.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: So it is a

          7  long time overdue.

          8                 One of the things that I have to ask

          9  you, how do you measure or how do you announce how

         10  effective we are in results of bringing young and

         11  the families together; how do we measure this on our

         12  programs, if we are successful? What is the

         13  barometer we are using or something?

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: All

         15  contracts have goals and objectives. All contracts.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Okay.

         17                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: As an

         18  example. A beacon is required to serve at a minimum

         19  1,700 people annually. They report to us on a

         20  monthly basis on how they are serving people. We

         21  monitor them, we don't just accept what they -- we

         22  monitor beacons, and all programs. We go out in the

         23  field, we take a look at what they are doing. We

         24  have an instrument that tells us whether or not they

         25  are providing the services as per the contract and
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          2  serving the number as per the contract, if they have

          3  the staff on board that they are supposed to have on

          4  board, that sort of thing. And at the end of the

          5  year we do the index evaluation, which says that

          6  they are meeting their goals or they are not meeting

          7  their goals. And so that is basically what we do. We

          8  monitor them, we review their data, and then we an

          9  evaluation on them.

         10                 On the youth side, on the CD side we

         11  have actually put some new outcomes in the

         12  contracts, which Carlton could address, but we also

         13  are moving toward doing that on the youth side as

         14  well.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Do we

         16  actually let them know when we are going to inspect

         17  a site?

         18                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: We do

         19  both announced and unannounced visits.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: When a young

         21  man or a young lady goes to sign up for a beacon, do

         22  they sign up one time and then they just have a

         23  sign-in sheet every time they come?

         24                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: They

         25  register, they get an ID card, as a member of the
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          2  beacon.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Yes.

          4                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: And

          5  then they attend various activities.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Okay.

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: And so

          8  they sign-in for those activities. But you register

          9  for the beacon.

         10                 Many beacons, although not all yet,

         11  will have even picture ID cards.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Okay. What

         13  percentage has picture ID cards?

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: I think

         15  we have -- I don't know the percentage right now but

         16  a number of them.

         17                 We have told them that we are moving

         18  towards all beacons having picture ID cards.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: That would be

         20  great.

         21                 The other last thing I am going to

         22  ask you is, on violence, and I know we have another

         23  hearing jointly with youth violence, but in beacons

         24  are we experiencing any violence going on during the

         25  beacon programs?
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          2                 I haven't heard of any, but I am

          3  wondering throughout the City are we experiencing

          4  any violence?

          5                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: I don't

          6  think that we are having any more problems than

          7  normal they have. There have been incidents. We have

          8  systems in place to identify and take care of those

          9  incidents, working with the schools. All beacons are

         10  required to have a security claim, as you may know.

         11  And so that we work with security people in the

         12  schools to try to stem that as best we can. And most

         13  beacons will do violence intervention types of

         14  services as well.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Okay. But now

         16  even the day gets shorted, by 4:30 we are dark; are

         17  we also working, coordinating with the local

         18  precincts of at least having some presence of police

         19  outside?

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: Not

         21  only that. The youth officer in almost every

         22  precinct is a part of the Beacon Advisory Committee.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Okay, great.

         24  Thank you.

         25                 Council Member Robinson.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Good

          3  afternoon, Commissioner Mitchell and Mitchell.

          4                 While you were going through your

          5  testimony, Commissioner Mitchell, I was thinking

          6  about the beacon program and how long it has taken

          7  for this evaluation to take place, and I just jotted

          8  down a note, I just hope that we have a copy of that

          9  evaluation before our term of office is over.

         10                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: Can I

         11  answer that right now?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Yes, please.

         13                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: I want

         14  to remind you that it is a three-year study, and the

         15  findings of the first year I did share with the

         16  Committee, and we don't have the findings of the

         17  second year, but as soon as those come out, I will

         18  share with the Committee. So, it is a three-year

         19  study.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Okay, thank

         21  you. I said, well, you know, when is this going to

         22  be done.

         23                 My question, Commissioner, goes to in

         24  regards to those persons receiving HEAP, to eligible

         25  non-public assistance households, and I understand
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          2  this objective was deleted from the MMR, what is the

          3  status of that and why?

          4                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: Well, I

          5  mean I think operations will have to explain why the

          6  objective, but the information is within the MMR.

          7  The objective itself was lifted out, but the

          8  information itself regarding HEAP is in the MMR, and

          9  I think Operations would have to tell you. They

         10  decide which objectives are identified and which are

         11  in the body of the document.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: All right,

         13  then.

         14                 And, so, what was --

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: I mean,

         16  we did operate HEAP in '99.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Okay. All

         18  right.

         19                 Let me ask you this then. In regards

         20  to the services to the City's youth through

         21  educational counseling and recreational programs,

         22  could you be more descriptive in terms of the kinds

         23  of the programs that you provide for young people in

         24  that objective?

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: What we
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          2  provide are basic after school programs which have a

          3  variety of services so that education can be

          4  something as simplistic as homework help to as

          5  comprehensive as computer training. And it really

          6  depends on the organization in terms of what that

          7  is.

          8                 All of those are services that are

          9  provided within our portfolio.

         10                 Recreation programs could be as

         11  simple as, you know, a basketball game to providing

         12  services through our Smart Sports Program, which is

         13  not just for sports, but the provision of training

         14  of young people to ensure that they understand what

         15  wellness is, to ensure that they understand what

         16  violence prevention is or developing skills for

         17  violence prevention so that both activities are

         18  really sort of across the board.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Okay.

         20                 Let me ask you this, as well. Council

         21  Member Stabile alluded to it and we are always

         22  concerned about outcome. How do you measure whether

         23  or not the children have gotten what the intent of

         24  the program was, how do you do that? Do you have an

         25  advisory group that you develop afterwards where you
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          2  use these young people as peer leaders so that they

          3  can work with some other young people? How do you

          4  actually measure the outcome of the program?

          5                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: Right

          6  now the youth contract specifically, right now the

          7  youth contracts have what we would call soft

          8  outcomes in them, and they are based primarily on

          9  attendance so that overall we have an attendance

         10  rate that the agencies are held accountable for.

         11                 In terms of specific outcomes, like

         12  whether their educational level increased, we don't

         13  have those outcomes in our contracts now. We now

         14  have a task force within the agency looking

         15  specifically to develop outcomes for youth

         16  contracts.

         17                 We have developed them on the CD

         18  side, but we have not developed them on the youth

         19  side. We will have those in our contracts, but we do

         20  a number of things to ensure that young people are

         21  participating, that they are attending and that the

         22  agency providing the services they are contracted to

         23  provide. And we monitor, we get reports from

         24  agencies, we review those reports, when we monitor

         25  we talk to young people. That is part of the
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          2  monitoring instruments, and in addition to talking

          3  to the staff of the agency, and we do this both, as

          4  I said earlier, an announced and unannounced visit

          5  so that agencies don't always know when we are

          6  coming out there so they don't set things up for us.

          7                 Our agencies are very, very good

          8  organizations who understand what youth development

          9  is all about, and who know that providing services

         10  in a particular framework and having young people

         11  come to those programs day after day, you know,

         12  ensures they are going to get the kind of skills

         13  that they have designed for them.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Thank you,

         15  Commissioner.

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: You are

         17  welcome.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Council Member

         19  Cruz.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: Thank you very

         21  much.

         22                 Welcome, Commissioners, no relation.

         23  And certainly, it is good to see you, Commissioner

         24  Violet Mitchell.

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: It is
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          2  good to see you.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: We have been

          4  around the block a long time and we have been

          5  looking at each other for years so --

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: So, welcome

          8  again.

          9                 COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: Thanks.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: I have two

         11  questions. One is, I know you alluded to it in your

         12  statement regarding the outreach that has been done

         13  to legal immigrants. Could you describe what type of

         14  outreach has in fact been initiated and the type of

         15  response?

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: Well,

         17  our citizenship NYC program has done a number of

         18  things. We go out to organizations to talk about

         19  CNYC. We have sent out letters to thousands of

         20  families and organizations about CNYC. We do

         21  presentations anywhere any time people want to know

         22  about the citizenship program.

         23                 Our most recent outreach to the young

         24  people who have been put out of their benefits when

         25  they turn 18, I think we sent out something like
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          2  14,000 letters I say to that population. So, those

          3  are the kinds of ways, and we do it also through a

          4  number of organizations that we fund to do

          5  citizenship programs as well.

          6                 So, we reach out in as many ways

          7  possible to let people know that the service is

          8  there.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: Let me just ask

         10  you hypothetically; how do we know that there is, a

         11  person is in fact an immigrant? When they join the

         12  beacon or programs, do we have anything that --

         13                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: When

         14  people come in to use our program, the only thing

         15  they have to be is a young person, that's all.

         16                 Now, organizations do have

         17  applications, because they need information on young

         18  people. They need information for in case of an

         19  emergency, or they want to know who they are

         20  serving, but there is no -- for our general youth

         21  programs there is no criteria in terms of who they

         22  are.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: My next question

         24  would be budget. Is there a specific budget for each

         25  beacon program, or does it depend on area?
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: No.

          3  Each beacon gets the same amount of money, $400,000

          4  for program money, and $50,000 a set aside for

          5  opening fees for this group. Everybody gets the

          6  same.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: Let's say in one

          8  beacon program we have ten youngsters and in another

          9  beacon we have 20, they both get --

         10                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: No

         11  beacon will serve less than 1,700 people annually.

         12  No beacon and remain a beacon.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: Okay. Thank you

         14  very much.

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: You are

         16  welcome.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Council Member

         18  Perkins.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you,

         20  Mr. Chair. And thank you, Commissioners, for your

         21  testimony.

         22                 I am going to ask about one of the

         23  more successful initiatives, which is the New York

         24  City Youthline.

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I am

          3  wondering how well advertised are we with that

          4  particular initiative; is there room for

          5  improvement, and in what ways do you think we can

          6  get the word out better?

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: There

          8  is absolutely room for improvement. We don't have a

          9  marketing budget. When Youthline first started they

         10  put posters on the subways and things like that. And

         11  I don't know how effective that was at that time.

         12                 We do a number of things, and I guess

         13  our big marketing push is doing presentations and

         14  sending information to CBOs and to events. We do

         15  public service announcements. We do letters to

         16  organizations, you know, a couple of times during

         17  the year to let them know that we are there. We send

         18  information to the schools. We send information,

         19  September, October, send out a letter to guidance

         20  counselors or principals to let them know that

         21  Youthline is available. We have sort of a one page

         22  which gives a general overview of the phone number.

         23  When we do presentations or workshops, we do

         24  workshops, we train people, we obviously provide

         25  information about youth line, what it is, and we
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          2  give out information or memorabilia with the phone

          3  number on it. Certainly there are other things that

          4  can be done, and I am certainly willing to listen to

          5  suggestions you may have.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you.

          7                 Let me ask you, the data that you

          8  collect by virtue of the phone calls, amongst that

          9  data do you collect like sort of geographic data in

         10  terms of where the calls are coming from?

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: By

         12  borough only.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Only by

         14  borough.

         15                 Is there a reason for that?

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: It is

         17  an anonymous call, and so --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: But by that

         19  geographically, not necessarily in terms of

         20  identifying the individual. I just want to get a

         21  sense to some extent in terms of neighborhoods or in

         22  terms of --

         23                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: Well,

         24  the really hard thing is that when you have a young

         25  person on the phone, and they are -- even if they
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          2  are just asking for information it is an anonymous

          3  call, and if you start to ask them a series of

          4  questions like where do you live, what borough do

          5  you live in, borough we get borough and that is

          6  about as much as we can get. What neighborhood and

          7  what school, then they start to back off. So, we

          8  choose to deal with borough in terms of getting

          9  where they are calling from.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So, for

         11  instance, the roughly 84,000 calls, how does that

         12  break out by borough; do you know offhand?

         13                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: I don't

         14  know offhand. I think less in Staten Island and

         15  probably Brooklyn is the heaviest. I don't know the

         16  numbers.

         17                 We know what those numbers are based

         18  on what they tell us.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Let me ask

         20  one final question, Mr. Chairman, related to the

         21  Citizenship Initiative.

         22                 How is it determined which areas

         23  receive the citizenship storefront or offices?

         24                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: When

         25  the Initiative was first developed -- and Carlton,
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          2  you can help me out on this -- I think we looked at

          3  the areas where the population that we were serving

          4  initially, which were those people receiving

          5  benefits from HRA, and we looked in those particular

          6  areas and found sites in those particular areas

          7  because it was determined that that is the place

          8  where we would need to reach out to those

          9  individuals, I think that is how the sites were

         10  first developed.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Now, you

         12  mentioned the ever-changing need of immigrant New

         13  Yorkers, which brings to mind that there may be a

         14  need to identify sites differently than there were

         15  before, because the immigration patterns are

         16  changing significantly.

         17                 I know, for instance, even in Central

         18  Harlem we are seeing an immigrant population that

         19  may not have been identified earlier, that is

         20  growing significantly and which needs services, and

         21  I am just wondering how to -- or even in the East

         22  Harlem Community for that matter, and I am just

         23  wondering how do we deal with these changes that are

         24  taking place in the City as it relates to --

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: Well,
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          2  we would be happy to talk about that, but, remember,

          3  it has to be -- we don't provide all immigrants all

          4  services. It is a particular population that we were

          5  dealing with.

          6                 As an example, we changed, not

          7  changed but prioritized new services for young

          8  people who would have been cut off of their parents'

          9  benefits when they turned 18, so we directed

         10  services to let them know what they needed to do to

         11  become citizens.

         12                 So, if there is a population that you

         13  are talking about in a particular area, I think that

         14  is something that we can talk about.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I am just

         16  wondering if that definition of who you serve, is

         17  that changing? Is there room for any change with

         18  respect to that?

         19                 Just because the needs of the

         20  immigrant population is changing and maybe we need

         21  to look at more than just that group that you were

         22  originally defined to look at.

         23                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: Well,

         24  again, I think that we can talk more specifically

         25  about those issues. I mean, the goal is for us to
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          2  try to help people become citizens and not other

          3  kinds of services that we are no equipped to

          4  provide.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay.

          6                 Well, I think that from my point of

          7  view that that is consistent with the concerns that

          8  I have. I just don't want it to be limited to what

          9  the original thought was about it. And I recognize

         10  that the populations of immigrants are in places

         11  that these particular sites don't capture.

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: We also

         13  have organizations that provide services, a broader

         14  range of services to immigrant populations, and that

         15  may be the place where we want to talk about, what

         16  you are speaking of.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: All right,

         18  thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: We had been

         20  joined previously by Council Member Clarke, and I

         21  believe she has a question.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you very

         23  much, Mr. Chairman.

         24                 I just want to look a little bit at

         25  the homeless youth programs. I just want to ask you
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          2  what relationship there is between what you do and

          3  the Department of Homeless Services as an agency.

          4  Because what I find is the duplication in different

          5  agencies so that we don't really get a handle on the

          6  population of persons that may be homeless, although

          7  they may be youth.

          8                 I just want to know, in terms of

          9  providing shelter for them, do you work with the

         10  Department of Youth -- of Homeless Services? And if

         11  so, is there a budget change-over and is that

         12  reflected in your MMR? Since that is what this is

         13  all about?

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: We deal

         15  with a specific population, that is young people up

         16  to the age of 21, who have run away or who are in

         17  need of shelter or temporary shelter or transitional

         18  living, and while we do work with DHS, their

         19  population is adults and families, so there is no

         20  change in our funding in terms of that.

         21                 We do sort of talk about the services

         22  that we both provide, but we deal with a specific

         23  youth population in our run-away homeless program.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: So, the issue

         25  of, I am trying to get a handle on the issue of
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          2  homeless itself, because if somebody were to ask me

          3  how many persons are homeless in the City of New

          4  York, I would probably just go to the Department of

          5  Homeless Services and ask how many do you have, not

          6  recognizing that you provide a service for

          7  individuals that are homeless, although they may be

          8  21 and under. And so I just for statistical reasons

          9  want to see whether there is a match between what

         10  you do? Or if not, can you describe for me the range

         11  of service that you provide to these homeless young

         12  people?

         13                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: We

         14  provide shelter, either in congregate care or an

         15  apartment program. We provide transitional living

         16  services where young people learn skills to help

         17  them move out of homelessness. It may be job skills,

         18  it may be helping them get a GED, or if they are 16

         19  years of age, go back to school, or we reunite them

         20  with their families. And I can't speak specifically

         21  about the Department of Homeless Services, but,

         22  again, I think that we are dealing with a young

         23  population who is already disconnected from their

         24  family, where they may be dealing with adults and

         25  families within their shelter system.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Who supervised

          3  these young people? If you provide services for

          4  them, where are they placed? Who are the service

          5  providers? If a runaway decides to go home, or to

          6  return some place else, who makes sure that where

          7  they return to is where they originally came from?

          8  Is there a contact between the family from which

          9  they came, and what you do for them? You know, I am

         10  trying to find how --

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: The

         12  organizations that we fund provide these services

         13  make that contact. And again, these are the young

         14  people who contact us looking for services, either

         15  through the Youthline, or through organizations that

         16  are known within a particular area, or through youth

         17  officers, because the youth officers know where our

         18  programs are and they provide information to them

         19  about availability of beds. But it is the

         20  organization that we contract that makes that

         21  connection between whether or not they are going to

         22  go back to stay with their families or whether or

         23  not they need to remain in a shelter for 30 days or

         24  whether or not they need some other kind of service

         25  that they can refer them to.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: When I came in

          3  Council Member Perkins was asking some questions

          4  about programs targeted at immigrants. Have you now

          5  changed from providing citizenship for the disabled

          6  and the elderly in order to maintain their benefits

          7  and have now added young people to that population

          8  so that if I were to send somebody to the program at

          9  Kings County, I could send some youngsters from

         10  Erasmus Hall or from Windgate and say you can go

         11  over there and get your citizenship.

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: We

         13  added the young people who would have lost benefits

         14  when they turned 18, that is the group of young

         15  people that we added to this mix.

         16                 We didn't substitute them for

         17  anybody, we added them. We reached out to them, we

         18  got the names from HRA and sent out I think about

         19  14,000 letters to that population, and added them to

         20  the mix of services that we are providing.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: If they are

         22  not known to HRA, but they may be young immigrant

         23  persons, what age 18 is going to come to age of

         24  majority anyway, and I use Erasmus Hall and Windgate

         25  because I don't want to get into anybody else's
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          2  district. And if I were to say you can go over to

          3  Kings County and become a citizen because your

          4  parents will probably no longer be responsible and

          5  you may be able to get benefits on your own, is that

          6  appropriate? Because before this I could only send

          7  the elderly and the disabled because I was told that

          8  it was not for anyone else but the elderly and the

          9  disabled and that was to keep their federal

         10  benefits.

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: And

         12  they are receiving benefits now, you are saying? And

         13  they would lose those benefits when they turned 18?

         14  That is the persons you are talking about?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I am just

         16  saying if those young people would be qualified for

         17  benefits, could they go to the center and become

         18  citizens? Would you process them or would they be

         19  told they have to go some place else?

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: I am

         21  not sure what you are asking. If by benefits you

         22  mean benefits under the Human Resources

         23  Administration?

         24                 See, we are not doing the reverse. We

         25  are not finding people who need benefits, we are
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          2  finding people who would lose their benefits once

          3  they are 18 to help them become citizens. So, it

          4  would not be the proper referral.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Right, I got

          6  you. Thank you very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Commissioner, the

          8  report indicates that in Fiscal Year '99 you served

          9  998,594 young people, but you are only planning on

         10  serving 960,000 in Fiscal Year 2000; can you

         11  elaborate on that a little bit?

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: Yes,

         13  what happens really is the number that we are

         14  serving, we always serve more than we plan and so

         15  that number for 2,000 is the contracted number, and

         16  so since we didn't change the contracts, we just put

         17  the contract number there, and it is a service

         18  number, but it is likely that we will serve more

         19  than that number.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Similarly, in

         21  your objective with respect to helping low-income

         22  residents become self-sufficient under the federal

         23  Community Action Program, the objective is to serve

         24  6,133 adults through the literacy and basic

         25  education programs, although both the actual and the
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          2  plan called for an extra 10,000. Why shouldn't the

          3  objective be adjusted to reflect both the reality

          4  and the plan?

          5                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: It is

          6  the same issue that we do multi-year contracts, and

          7  we put numbers in there multi-year, and we don't

          8  revise those contracts, we just lay out what our

          9  plans are and then the numbers that we serve.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: I took a moment

         11  to look through the Volume II, the agency and

         12  citywide indicators part of the report, I didn't see

         13  any reference to the HEAP program.

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: It was

         15  taken out as an indicator, but it is not in the --

         16  it should be in the narrative, no?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: It is not in

         18  either document, I think as best as I can tell. If

         19  you can provide us with some information on that I

         20  would appreciate it.

         21                 I also didn't see anything in either

         22  of the volumes regarding the After Three Corporation

         23  Program, and I was wondering if we have objectives,

         24  goals and mission indicators for that component of

         25  youth services?
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: We have

          3  not included them in the MMR, but the After School

          4  Corporation had 50 sites serving up to 300 youth per

          5  site. Agencies have different numbers, they can

          6  serve 200, 225, 300, but we did operate that

          7  program, we have just not had it as a separate

          8  indicator in the MMR.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: It is something

         10  to look at since I think the Council is of the mind

         11  to expand that program, assuming that the

         12  performance meets our expectations.

         13                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: Right.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: I also didn't see

         15  anything in there in terms of technical assistance

         16  contracts, and whether or not the agencies that are

         17  providing technical assistance are providing the

         18  expected levels and meeting their goals and

         19  objectives.

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: For the

         21  most part, yes, we have had to make some changes in

         22  the way that a couple of the agencies provided, not

         23  provided TA, but got agencies to provide TA to, and

         24  so I think that we have been able to change the way

         25  that they got referrals, which is bringing them up
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          2  to par now.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: I am advised by

          4  our staff that there were certain objectives in last

          5  year's MMR relating to program evaluation and

          6  contract management that are not included in this

          7  year's MMR, and I was wondering if you could tell us

          8  why --

          9                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: You

         10  mean the monitoring reports and the VENDEX

         11  evaluations?

         12                 As I recall, our VENDEX numbers are

         13  98 percent, I think. And I think that we met our

         14  objectives for the monitoring and the fiscal review

         15  numbers.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: The last couple

         17  of questions, and I think Council Member Cruz had a

         18  second round of questions.

         19                 First of all, we are apparently doing

         20  a survey of all of the City agencies with respect to

         21  policies on E.mail inquiries, and I was asked to ask

         22  you a series of questions about how you handle

         23  E.mail, et cetera.

         24                 What I would like to do, if that is

         25  all right with you, is give you a copy of this and
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          2  ask you if you could give us a written response to

          3  these questions within a week and we will include it

          4  in the record, as we have done through a Q and A in

          5  the past.

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: Sure.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: A number of my

          8  colleagues have raised questions about the quality

          9  of programs and the measurement of the quality of

         10  programs. I wanted to ask you specifically with

         11  respect to again the federal Community Action

         12  Program where the objective is to achieve positive

         13  program outcomes, including attaining a higher

         14  education level receiving citizenship or attaining a

         15  job.

         16                 Can you provide us with a breakdown

         17  of how many of the 8,000 plus participants who

         18  obtained the outcome, positive outcomes, obtained

         19  them in each of these categories so we can get some

         20  sense of is it that people who go through this

         21  program are doing better with citizenship, or are

         22  they doing better with jobs or does one go with the

         23  other, are there overlaps where we find if someone

         24  attains a higher educational level does it provide

         25  actual empirical data that they have a better chance
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          2  of getting a job. Any type of breakdown or

          3  coefficients, in terms of those outcomes.

          4                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: We will

          5  be able to provide specific informational outcomes

          6  from the community block grant programs because of

          7  the system that has been developed, and the agencies

          8  have just started to provide that data so we will

          9  have that. So we will be able to break out the

         10  outcomes in the various categories.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER:  Just the two

         12  last points. One is, you and I have had the

         13  opportunity to have some private colloquy on

         14  creation of an inventory of all youth service

         15  programs in the City since your agency provides some

         16  of them, but there are others that are provided by

         17  the Board of Ed, the Housing Authority, the Central

         18  Board, the Local Boards, PALs, working through

         19  precincts and others; and I was wondering, have you

         20  had the opportunity to take that up the chain of

         21  command to see if we can get some support from the

         22  Office of Operations or otherwise, to start to

         23  create a comprehensive database so we can tell not

         24  only how many services are being provided or where

         25  they are being provided.
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: No, I

          3  haven't, but starting today I think.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: And then the last

          5  point I wanted to make, Commissioner, was since we

          6  don't know for certain that anyone is watching this

          7  on Crosswalks, but there is some evidence that

          8  people do watch, and we are appreciative of the

          9  coverage, if you would like to give the Youthline

         10  phone number now, why don't you take that

         11  opportunity.

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: Thank

         13  you, I will do that. And as a matter of fact, we do

         14  advertise on Crosswalks, but the number is

         15  1-800-246-4646, 24 hours a day, seven days a week,

         16  52 weeks a year Youthline is there for you.

         17  1-800-246-4646. Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Thank you,

         19  Commissioner.

         20                 Council Member Cruz, did you have a

         21  follow-up question?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: Yes, I did.

         23                 You mentioned there has to be a

         24  minimum of 1,700 children per beacon, and we were

         25  doing some quick math here; let me start off by
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          2  asking you, Commissioner, how much was spent in last

          3  year's fiscal dollar amount? Last year's fiscal

          4  amount?

          5                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: I can't

          6  do the math in my head, but 400,000 times 76

          7  beacons.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: Okay. Well, we

          9  rounded it out, you had said 400 and then another 50

         10  --

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: That

         12  $50,000 is for opening fees only, it is not per

         13  program.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: So, 400,000 per

         15  76 beacons still comes out to a lot of money, and

         16  not every beacon has 1,700 children enrolled. What

         17  happens if over surplus, do we --

         18                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: But

         19  they do.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: Every beacon

         21  has?

         22                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL:

         23  Absolutely.

         24                 Over the course of the year the

         25  minimum they have to serve is 1,700 young people.
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          2  Plus they serve adults. We don't put a number on

          3  adults.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: Okay.

          5                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: So that

          6  the beacons traditionally serve more people than

          7  they are contracted to serve.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: Okay. Let me

          9  just ask then, how much do we budget for youngsters;

         10  is there a dollar amount per child?

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: No.

         12  Once staffing and OTPS is taken out of an agency's

         13  budget, then the rest of the money is for what would

         14  be needed to provide the services to a young person.

         15  And it is a $400,000 budget. Usually beacons will

         16  have part-time staff people because they may need

         17  part-time counsel, part-time recreational person,

         18  that sort of thing, to serve those young people.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: And my last

         20  question, do we have any idea what percentage of the

         21  $400,000 goes towards staffing?

         22                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: We know

         23  specifically agency by agency, yes. And I don't have

         24  a percentage overall, but, yes, we know specifically

         25  agency by agency and we look very carefully at the
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          2  way the programs are designed, the staffing is

          3  designed, to ensure that all of the money is not

          4  going to staff, as opposed to for services for the

          5  young people.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: Okay. Thank you

          7  so much.

          8                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: Okay.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: I think Council

         10  Member Perkins had a final question.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you so

         12  much. I have a concern about a trend that I see in

         13  the Administration in terms of how they are handling

         14  a lot of service provision. I have seen that with a

         15  lot of the contracting that is being done. In the

         16  past a lot of community-based not-for-profit

         17  organizations are providing services in our

         18  neighborhoods, and I have seen that approach being

         19  changed to more profit-oriented larger

         20  non-community-based organizations involved.

         21                 I am wondering, in your case, you

         22  have a lot of contracts, do you know the difference

         23  between those that are profit-based contracts, and

         24  those that are not-for-profit based contracts? Those

         25  that are sort of community-based contractors,
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          2  not-for-profit community-based contractors and those

          3  that are otherwise? Do you have statistics on that?

          4                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: We know

          5  who they are by virtue of the information they

          6  submit to us when they apply for an RFP as an

          7  example, if someone is a non-profit organization,

          8  and I think that all of the agencies that we have

          9  thus far are non-profit organizations. We know that

         10  we have that information, that information is

         11  gathered at the time they apply for an RFP, and we

         12  know where they are located, we know where they are

         13  providing the services.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Would you say

         15  they are predominantly community-based

         16  not-for-profits?

         17                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: Within

         18  our portfolio, yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Is there a

         20  way that that can be easily gathered and provided

         21  through the chair? I would like to see them.

         22                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: We have

         23  a list of them. We know which community board they

         24  are in and we know which Council district they are

         25  in. We have that kind of information. We know the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            55

          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2  addresses where the services were being provided,

          3  and the address of headquarters, if you will. So, I

          4  think it can be programmed to provide the way you

          5  are asking for it, yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

          7  very much. I want to just hope that that tendency

          8  just continues under your leadership, because that

          9  not-for-profit community-based approach that has

         10  proven to be very valuable, not simply in terms of

         11  the services provided, but also just in terms of the

         12  strengthening of the community, and anything that

         13  moves away from that kind of creates a little bit of

         14  a concern for those of us that have gone through the

         15  history of that development.

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: The

         17  vast majority of the organizations that we fund are

         18  not-for-profit organizations in specific

         19  neighborhoods. In fact, on the community development

         20  side, we must have them in poor areas as a matter of

         21  fact.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Council Member

         24  Stabile.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Well, I am
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          2  glad my colleague brought up something that I really

          3  have a little problem with. This is like a pebble in

          4  my shoe that I can't get away.

          5                 When an organization is marked

          6  not-for-profit, correct me for the video audience

          7  and for the people out here in the audience today,

          8  that doesn't mean that they cannot have people on

          9  salary, that doesn't mean the CEO of that company is

         10  not on salary, that doesn't mean that he cannot get

         11  a salary, or anyone else involved with that

         12  organization; am I correct?

         13                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: You are

         14  absolutely correct.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: So it is

         16  great to say we are a not-for-profit organization,

         17  and I mean this from my minority members of the

         18  Council, where we are being ripped off in a lot of

         19  the minority communities, where the percentage of

         20  the money is not reaching the children because they

         21  use that great quote not-for-profit, but, yet, when

         22  you look at their numbers you see that someone is

         23  making 60,000, someone else is making 40,000, and a

         24  person who comes in just to do the books is getting

         25  15,000, and when you add it up and you say we get a
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          2  $400,000 budget, but you are laying out in salaries

          3  somewhere near 100,000 to 150,000 dollars. Which we

          4  are not saying we are asking people to work for

          5  nothing, but when an organization goes out there,

          6  especially to a community board who says "we are

          7  not-for-profit", the organization may not be for

          8  profit, but certainly the people that are working

          9  for the organization are for profit, because they

         10  are getting a salary and they are getting a lot of

         11  other benefits with it.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Council member,

         13  did you have a specific agency in mind that you

         14  think is paying excessive salaries that you want to

         15  bring up?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: I could sit

         17  back and give you probably 20 of them that I would

         18  like to talk to you in private about that definitely

         19  are.

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: I think

         21  the CBOs that we fund will tell you, we don't give

         22  them a lot of money for staff. You know, they don't

         23  make competitive salaries in a lot of areas. They

         24  tell me that all the time. And the status

         25  non-for-profit is the status of their organization.
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          2  It means that all of the money goes for the hiring

          3  of staff and the provision of services and the other

          4  than personal services within that organization.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Also a great

          6  tax write-off.

          7                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: Well --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Thank you very

          9  much, Commissioner.

         10                 And if you could get back to us on a

         11  couple of specific questions, I think your staff

         12  took notes on them and we appreciate your testimony

         13  today.

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER MITCHELL: Thank

         15  you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: We are going to

         17  take a one-minute recess and then we are continuing

         18  with DJJ.

         19                 (Recess taken.)

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Good afternoon.

         21  This is a continued hearing of the Committee on

         22  Youth Services. This portion, together with the

         23  Subcommittee on Juvenile Justice chaired by Council

         24  Member Robinson, I previously introduced the members

         25  of the Committee in attendance, we will now proceed
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          2  to that portion of our hearing which will relate to

          3  the Mayor's Management Report for the Department of

          4  Juvenile Justice, at the conclusion of which we will

          5  also be hearing from the Department of Employment

          6  with respect to that portion of the MMR that relates

          7  to the Summer Youth Program.

          8                 Commissioner Hernandez, if you will

          9  introduce yourself and your team, and you can

         10  proceed with your testimony.

         11                 Council Member Robinson.

         12                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Thank you

         13  very much, Chairman Fisher.

         14                 Good afternoon, ladies and gentlemen.

         15  Welcome to today's hearing of the Committee on Youth

         16  Services and the Subcommittee on Juvenile Justice,

         17  as we examine the MMR on the Department of Juvenile

         18  Justice.

         19                 This day we will conduct an oversight

         20  hearing in the final Mayor's Management Report for

         21  Fiscal Year 1999, as it relates to the operation of

         22  the Department of Juvenile Justice. Witnesses

         23  expected to testify at this hearing include

         24  Commissioner Tino Hernandez.

         25                 So, just for the audiences
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          2  edification, I would like to just make them aware of

          3  what the mission is for this agency. The Department

          4  of Juvenile Justice provides detention, after care

          5  and delinquency prevention services to juveniles in

          6  New York City.

          7                 Youth detained in the Department's

          8  facilities included alleged juvenile offenders and

          9  juvenile delinquents whose cases are pending, as

         10  well as those whose cases have been adjudicated and

         11  are awaiting transfer to State Office of Children

         12  and Family Services facilities.

         13                 The Department operates secure

         14  detention facilities that admit approximately 5,300

         15  youth each year, non-secure detention facilities

         16  that recorded 1,500 admissions each year, and after

         17  care and prevention programs that serve

         18  approximately 900 youth each year.

         19                 We will now hear from Commissioner

         20  Tino Hernandez, as he responds to the Mayor's

         21  Management Report.

         22                 Commissioner, good afternoon, and

         23  welcome.

         24                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Good

         25  afternoon, Chairman Fisher, Chairwoman Robinson and
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          2  honorable members of the Youth Services Committee, I

          3  am Tino Hernandez, Commissioner of the New York City

          4  Department of Juvenile Justice.

          5                 On my far left, let me introduce

          6  Leslie Hurdle, Assistant Commissioner for Planning

          7  and Management and Analysis. On my immediate left is

          8  Doug Appel, Deputy Commissioner of Administration

          9  for the Agency. And on my right is Cleo Glass, who

         10  is the new Deputy Commissioner for Operations for

         11  the Department of Juvenile Justice.

         12                 During my tenure as Commissioner, I

         13  have testified before this Committee numerous times

         14  where I have shared with you information on

         15  population trends, detention capacity plans and the

         16  programmatic and service enhancements.

         17                 As you may recall, at our last

         18  hearing I reported on DJJ's Fiscal Year '99

         19  population data.

         20                 Today I would like to focus my

         21  remarks on the MMR as it relates to management

         22  initiatives and improvements made by the Department.

         23  Over the last two fiscal years, we have been

         24  successful in strengthening the Department's

         25  operational infrastructure by increasing headcount,
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          2  filling key vacancies, and restructuring our

          3  management team.

          4                 From January '98 to today, DJJ's

          5  headcount has increased by 559 to over 750 staff,

          6  representing an overall increase of 25 percent.

          7                 Since becoming Commissioner, the

          8  Department has hired over 350 new staff members of

          9  which 64 percent are in direct child care positions.

         10  In addition, we have strengthened service delivery

         11  and operational efficiency by enhancing the

         12  Department's management infrastructure. We

         13  accomplished this by building a management team

         14  under the Deputy Commissioner of Operations,

         15  including an Assistant Commissioner of Operations

         16  and other key staff to oversee day-to-day

         17  operations.

         18                 At the facilities, we have also

         19  filled all senior management vacancies. We have also

         20  assigned managers to oversee court services

         21  operations.

         22                 In addition to bringing on new staff

         23  members, I thought that it was equally important to

         24  find ways to strengthen DJJ's current workforce. One

         25  of the things that we decided to do was to
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          2  concentrate on absence control by reissuing the

          3  Department's time and leave policy. To enforce the

          4  policy we added resources to our discipline unit and

          5  provided training to detention-based management

          6  staff. As a result, in Fiscal Year '99, DJJ was able

          7  to reduce its absence rate by 22 percent.

          8                 During Fiscal Year '99, we also began

          9  to take steps to revamp training so that we can

         10  better equip staff with the skills needed to provide

         11  high quality services.

         12                 As reported in the MMR, DJJ placed a

         13  greater emphasis on youth development and skill

         14  building training for direct child care staff.

         15                 DJJ also contracted with the Center

         16  for the Alternative Sentencing and Employment

         17  Services known as CASES, to develop a new case

         18  manager training for the community-based initiative.

         19                 The Department will continue to

         20  improve its training program this year by soliciting

         21  technical assistance from a nationally known

         22  consultant to assess the training needs of direct

         23  line staff and assist the agency in developing an

         24  updated training curriculum.

         25                 To build accountability among staff
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          2  and assess the quality of services, the Department

          3  is putting new internal management reporting

          4  mechanisms into place to ensure continued compliance

          5  with mandates, monitor contract services and oversee

          6  levels of care.

          7                 One such mechanism is the creation of

          8  the Movement, Control and Communications Unit, known

          9  as MCCU, in September of '98. As DJJ moved to a

         10  multi-facility secure detention system, the tracking

         11  and movement of residents became a more critical

         12  function of the Department, in order to continue the

         13  proper management of detention's operations and

         14  capacity.

         15                 MCCU performs this duty. This unit

         16  operates 24 hours a day to manage the population

         17  level in the detention facilities, as well as serves

         18  as the centralized resident information hub to

         19  monitor daily operations.

         20                 In addition to establishing MCCU to

         21  meet some of the new needs born out of the complex

         22  and changing juvenile justice system, DJJ has

         23  developed, has begun to implement a new

         24  transportation plan, which not only improves the

         25  movement of juveniles between facilities, but more
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          2  efficiently transports them to and from court.

          3                 We have also added nine new staff

          4  members to the court services unit and established

          5  rescheduling procedures that maximize personnel

          6  resources.

          7                 In order to ensure that concerns and

          8  needs of residents are addressed in a prompt and

          9  productive manner, the Department revamped its

         10  ombudsman program by instituting practices that

         11  better facilitate communication between these staff

         12  members, detention-based management and the

         13  ombudsman review board.

         14                 DJJ has also hired two ombudsman

         15  persons to fill vacancies in this area, and will

         16  shortly select the candidate for the final vacancy

         17  as a way to make sure that the services of this

         18  program are available in multiple facilities.

         19                 During the past year, DJJ has

         20  dedicated significant time for the development of an

         21  automated administrative tracking system to support

         22  the operational and programmatic work of the

         23  Department.

         24                 In June '99, the automated Criminal

         25  Justice Information System, known as CJIS, went on
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          2  line.

          3                 CJIS is more comprehensive than DJJ's

          4  old data system and allows for the automation and

          5  tracking of custody, case management and medical

          6  information.

          7                 This system is also a shared network

          8  that can provide DJJ with access to pertinent

          9  resident information obtained by the Department of

         10  Probation, the Law Department, and the Police

         11  Department.

         12                 During this fiscal year, the

         13  Department will continue staff training on CJIS, and

         14  work to further customize the system to meet

         15  operational and planning needs.

         16                 During the second half of Fiscal '99,

         17  DJJ implemented an integrated personnel database

         18  called staff track, to monitor staffing levels in

         19  secure detention by facility and tour.

         20                 This system provides daily

         21  information to managers and assist the agency in

         22  regulating overtime, absences and staffing ratios.

         23                 I am also pleased to report that

         24  thanks to the diligent efforts of our staff this

         25  year, the Department has been successful in ensuring
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          2  that all of its systems and computers are Y2K

          3  compliant. We also have contingency plans in place

          4  to ensure smooth and safe facility operations on

          5  January 1st.

          6                 When I first testified before this

          7  Committee last year, I made a commitment to find

          8  additional resources to enhance DJJ's

          9  community-based intervention programs. Since that

         10  time the Department has quadrupled the size of CBI

         11  by accessing over 1.5 million in new city and

         12  federal funds.

         13                 In August, DJJ merged the Reduce

         14  Children's Violence in the after care programs to

         15  create a single community-based intervention program

         16  that offers both prevention and post detention

         17  services.

         18                 This merger creates a stronger

         19  infrastructure for the Department's community-based

         20  services, which has facilitated the leveraging of

         21  additional funding and the delivery of more

         22  comprehensive and consistent activities.

         23                 I would like to thank this Committee,

         24  in particular, Chairpersons Fisher and Robinson, for

         25  your support of this program. As a result of our
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          2  combined efforts, DJJ will expand this delinquency

          3  prevention services by contracting with two

          4  community-based organizations in Brooklyn to operate

          5  sites from the 77th and the 79th Precincts.

          6                 The Department has also been able to

          7  use some of these funds to leverage additional

          8  monies from the Department of Youth and Community

          9  Development to support the development of a truancy

         10  prevention program based in downtown Brooklyn, that

         11  will be administered through contracts with

         12  not-for-profit agencies.

         13                 As I have mentioned at previous

         14  hearings, DJJ was awarded a federal grant to expand

         15  post detention services. This funding is enabling

         16  CBI to contract with community-based organizations

         17  to run borough-based sites in Manhattan and Queens,

         18  which are expected to be in operation in February.

         19                 Through this grant the Department

         20  will also hire transitional counselors who will work

         21  as liaisons between detention and CBI to engage

         22  youth earlier for after care services upon release.

         23                 In addition to the support that the

         24  Council has provided for the CBI program, you have

         25  also been instrumental in enhancing DJJ's
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          2  detention-based mental health services by allocating

          3  funds from the Department of Health and Mental

          4  Health for case management services.

          5                 An organization will be identified to

          6  provide mental health case management services to

          7  youth in detention that require ongoing mental

          8  health services. Services will include developing

          9  comprehensive care plans for juveniles, engaging

         10  youth in treatment readiness activities, and linking

         11  youngsters to community-based mental health

         12  providers.

         13                 To supplement grants awarded directly

         14  to the Department, DJJ has been able to broker

         15  additional resources to some of its established

         16  partnerships with community-based organizations.

         17                 The Center for Court Innovation has

         18  been awarded a state-funded contract to institute a

         19  family strengthening component to DJJ's CBI program.

         20  This initiative, called Family Connections, will

         21  offer family interaction workshops and mediation

         22  sessions to young people enrolled in CBI and their

         23  family members.

         24                 Additional state formula grant funds

         25  will enable Berkshire Farms and the Center for
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          2  Community Alternatives to provide community-based

          3  drug intervention services to court-involved youth,

          4  which includes juveniles referred by DJJ. The same

          5  funding stream will also enable the Puerto Rican

          6  Family Institute to deliver mental health services

          7  in Manhattan to the same population.

          8                 The Bronx Council for the Arts was

          9  awarded a grant from the federal Office of Juvenile

         10  Justice and Delinquency Prevention to reach creative

         11  writing and graphic arts to juveniles in and

         12  released from detention. This program will target

         13  youth residing in the Horizon Juvenile Center and

         14  the Bronx CBI office.

         15                 DJJ has also been working with Bronx

         16  AIDS Services, which is an organization that won a

         17  grant to provide mentoring services to girls. This

         18  initiative serves girls enrolled in our

         19  post-detention services in the Bronx, as well as

         20  those referred by the Department of Probation.

         21                 DJJ will be partnering with the Vera

         22  Institute of Justice to develop strategies and

         23  interventions for detained juveniles with substance

         24  abuse problems. Vera has secured funding from OJJDP

         25  and the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation, to assess
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          2  the prevalence and severity of drug use among the

          3  juvenile detention population and to subsequently

          4  form effective treatment strategies.

          5                 As you can see, DJJ has been able to

          6  build significantly on its program services while

          7  continuing to enhance the operation of juvenile

          8  detention in the City. At this time I would like to

          9  conclude my remarks and take any questions that you

         10  may have.

         11                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Thank you

         12  very much, Commissioner Hernandez.

         13                 Council Member Clarke, did you have a

         14  question for the Commissioner?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Yes, please.

         16                 Thank you, Madam Chair. Would you

         17  kindly just let us know how do you use the MMR?

         18  Apart from the indicators that you tell us, is there

         19  anything that the agency uses your MMR for? And if

         20  so, what is it?

         21                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Let me let

         22  Doug Appel, Deputy Commissioner of Administration,

         23  respond to that. He joined us from the Mayor's

         24  Office of Operations, and is really our expert on

         25  MMR matters in the agency.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: Thank you.

          3                 Councilwoman, actually as I had to

          4  write the document, as Commissioner Hernandez said,

          5  and now I have to use it on this end, it has been an

          6  interesting experience.

          7                 We actually, I think the way we used

          8  it actually is two-fold. One is, because twice a

          9  year we have to go through the process of preparing

         10  the document, that by itself forces us to take a

         11  hard look at what we are doing and how we are doing

         12  it, and how we are meeting targets and stuff like

         13  that, which means you can't just wait until the end,

         14  you have to kind of do it over the course of the

         15  year.

         16                 So, we actually use the indicators

         17  very much to monitor our performance in areas of

         18  population and programmed services and CBI.

         19                 The other way we use it is sort of

         20  the goals and objective section, that kind of is a

         21  little less quantitative and qualitative, you know,

         22  the kind of softer parts of the services we provide

         23  that gives us a chance to look at things like case

         24  management services, like training, which are some

         25  of our goals objectives.
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          2                 As you can see in the testimony,

          3  those are some of the things we have focused on in

          4  the past year.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: So, I could

          6  say you use it as a management tool; would that be

          7  fair?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: That would

          9  be fair to say.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: That would be

         11  fair to say.

         12                 I am impressed, on page three, when

         13  you said that you reduced your absence by 22

         14  percent, can you then give us what the result of

         15  that reduction is? Did that also cut your overtime

         16  budget? And if so, by how much? You are the number

         17  cruncher, tell me.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: It is very

         19  much a function of the relationship between absence

         20  and overtime, as you know. Because the way we

         21  operate, if someone doesn't come to work, someone

         22  else is going to have to backfill that position on

         23  the overtime. So, the fact that our overtime

         24  reduced, as our absence reduced in the way it did,

         25  meant that we were able to have people come to work
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          2  more often, there was less need to back fill those

          3  positions on overtime.

          4                 What that however translates in,

          5  because overtime is caused by a lot of different

          6  factors, another factor that has a big impact on

          7  overtime is our population. So, because our

          8  population has gone up, overtime has relatively

          9  remained constant.

         10                 I will tell you it would have been

         11  much higher if we hadn't had the reduction in

         12  absence control.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay. And then

         14  you know I was going to ask about the

         15  detention-based mental health and the case

         16  management. Have you now worked out all the details,

         17  including a contractor who will provide the service,

         18  and whether in fact that agency has a track record

         19  of providing services to young people? Is it going

         20  to be a performance-based contract, or can I apply

         21  myself? Will the RFP come to me, and can I apply to

         22  do it myself?

         23                 And did you match the money?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: We have an

         25  existing set of mental health services that are
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          2  being provided by our current contractor.

          3                 What we are going to do is take a

          4  part of that service, add this service on. This

          5  service will give us more continuity, both in

          6  detention and for kids that are being returned to

          7  the community, so that really you could develop case

          8  management plans that start with admission to

          9  detention. Our contractor will play a role obviously

         10  because they are the primary provider of direct

         11  services, mental health services in detention, that

         12  work with the contractor in terms of assessing

         13  youth, identifying the needs of youth and developing

         14  a case management plan that will follow that youth

         15  when he leaves or returns to the community.

         16                 The second part I think you were

         17  asking about --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: My question

         19  was, is the agency one with -- is this going to be

         20  done in-house?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: No, we are

         22  going to contract out.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: So my question

         24  is, are you getting an agency with expertise in

         25  providing services to young people? Because it is
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          2  very different how a young person will present

          3  themselves in terms of mental health.

          4                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: We would

          5  essentially look for an agency, as you know we are

          6  working with the Department of Health and Mental

          7  Health, and we would look for an agency that would

          8  have (a), expertise obviously in mental health, that

          9  would have familiarity with working with a young

         10  population, that would also offer a comprehensive

         11  array of services within the community, because the

         12  biggest challenge is the ability to be able to move

         13  young people from detention within the community in

         14  services. So we would look for a program that would

         15  have all of those areas of expertise.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay. And then

         17  my final question is going to be, since the

         18  Department of Health and Mental Health, and as far

         19  as I know it is the Department of Mental Health,

         20  also provides services for substance abuse and

         21  alcohol, I see that you are going to be

         22  participating with the Vera Institute of Justice for

         23  intervention and substance abuse, will the

         24  Department of Mental Health also provide some

         25  guidance in terms of this service also?
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          2                 And will you then, as you did

          3  collaborate with the Department for this mental

          4  health piece, would you also do that for the

          5  substance abuse piece?

          6                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Absolutely.

          7                 As you know, Councilwoman, I have a

          8  long history of working within the drug treatment

          9  field and this is an area of particular interest to

         10  me personally.

         11                 One of the things that concerned me

         12  at arriving at the Department of Juvenile Justice is

         13  that we did not have organized substance abuse

         14  prevention intervention programs.

         15                 We had various providers offering

         16  services, but this is our intent, to look at a way

         17  of being able to (a) establish some quantitative

         18  information on the prevalence of drug abuse problems

         19  among juveniles in our detention; and then

         20  secondarily, to organize a programmatic response to

         21  that.

         22                 As part of this process which we are

         23  doing with the Vera Institute, funding from OJJDP,

         24  and also the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation, we will

         25  be developing an advisory committee.
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          2                 I have written a letter to

          3  Commissioner Cohen, and we have already had

          4  discussions with mental health on this matter and he

          5  will have a representative that will be an integral

          6  part of the process, as well as other city agencies,

          7  to get some private individuals that would also be

          8  able to provide some technical assistance as we move

          9  forward.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you very

         11  much.

         12                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         13                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Thank you,

         14  Council Member Clarke.

         15                 Council Member Stabile.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Commissioner,

         17  what is your rate of return?  With the young lady,

         18  the young man who is detained, what is the rate that

         19  he returns or she returns, what percentage?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: We

         21  actually have looked at that question, Councilman.

         22                 When we look at the rate of return I

         23  will caution you that it is only kids that have been

         24  admitted to the juvenile justice system. We don't

         25  track youth from the juvenile system, the adult

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            79

          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2  system. But we did find in recent statistics even

          3  from this year, that about 42 percent of all of the

          4  youth that are admitted to detention have been

          5  admitted before to detention. And in fact, we found

          6  that about a third of the kids had been admitted

          7  within the last year.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: And what

          9  percentage of let's say that 42 percent are

         10  drug/alcohol-related? If you definitely see some

         11  sort of relationship here where it is not only a

         12  behavior problem but it is a drug and alcohol

         13  problem. Or is it just a family problem of not

         14  having the right guidance at home? Is it a school

         15  problem? Do we have some sort of chicken coop where

         16  we can set the boxes up and say here is where the

         17  problems are?

         18                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: I would say,

         19  Councilman, that it is probably a complicated

         20  answer, and it could be all of the above. There are

         21  certainly a lot of research that indicates that if

         22  you do not pursue your education, that there can be

         23  a correlation between lack of education and criminal

         24  activity.

         25                 Again, I have a very long history of
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          2  working within drug treatment. I have always been

          3  interested in the correlation between drug use and

          4  crime. We do not right now have enough data,

          5  quantitative data, to be able to take a look at the

          6  prevalence of drug abuse among the population. I

          7  have myself spent a lot of time with the young

          8  people in the system and I do like focused

          9  discussions with them, and because I tend to have an

         10  expertise in that area, I would say there are a lot

         11  of young people within our system that are certainly

         12  using marijuana and alcohol. I think if you go

         13  beyond that you will identify maybe the use of crack

         14  and cocaine.

         15                 I think it is important for our

         16  system to have a programmatic response to that, and

         17  that is our endeavor with Vera, to really begin to

         18  work on a plan of action, that (a) would identify or

         19  quantify who has the most severe, or what percentage

         20  of the population has a real severity in drug use,

         21  and then to organize some kind of programmatic

         22  response to that.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Well, I think

         24  you are doing a good job and I believe that, to be

         25  very honest.
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          2                 I want to ask you a question about

          3  Spofford. Are we closed? Are we closing? Are we

          4  close to closing? Are we on the borderline?

          5                 I know when I came in the Council we

          6  talked about the two facilities, one in the Bronx,

          7  one in East New York, and this was going to take

          8  away Spofford, and Madam Chair was at one site when

          9  I was at East New York at the time, and a beautiful

         10  facility and everything else, and it was in the

         11  heart of the community. The community didn't really

         12  object to it, and we thought that Spofford some day

         13  would be closed, that it would no longer be an

         14  issue.

         15                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Actually,

         16  Councilman, when I arrived at the Department of

         17  Juvenile Justice, there had been, as you indicated,

         18  plans underway for three administrations to open the

         19  two new facilities, one in the Bronx and one in

         20  Brooklyn and the plan had been from three

         21  administrations ago to close Spofford. The world had

         22  changed by that time and when I arrived we opened

         23  the two new facilities and I immediately realized

         24  that we would have a shortfall in terms of capacity.

         25                 I made a decision at that time, which
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          2  people had apprehension about, to lease the Vernon

          3  C. Bain Correctional Facility for a period of time.

          4  When I did that I did that because we had a

          5  shortfall in capacity. I closed Spofford, reviewed

          6  the history of Spofford and recognized that there

          7  had been problems, historical problems with

          8  Spofford.

          9                 I think that the problems in my mind

         10  really fell into two sets of areas. One set of area

         11  has to do with the quality of care that was

         12  delivered there, which at the time when I arrived at

         13  the agency, I thought after researching the history

         14  began to improve significantly with the creation of

         15  the Department of Juvenile Justice.

         16                 Prior to that, Spofford had been

         17  under the jurisdiction of other city agencies and

         18  community-based organizations.

         19                 The second set of problems had to do

         20  with the condition of the building, and I made the

         21  decision at the time to deal with capacity to move

         22  into Vernon C. Bain, which people had apprehension

         23  about.

         24                 I made, and the Department made

         25  several commitments, as we used the Vernon C. Bain.
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          2  One is that we would not exceed the capacity of 100

          3  beds, because it is about an 800-bed facility, that

          4  we would use it as a short-term facility which we

          5  have honored, that we will use it then also for

          6  intake and to keep state-ready youngsters there.

          7  There would be a central location so they could be

          8  transported to state facilities, and that we would

          9  use it only for boys.

         10                 We did close Spofford, but then we

         11  made a decision to return to a renovated Spofford,

         12  we were utilizing three wings of Spofford, and we

         13  plan to move back into Spofford probably by the end

         14  of the year.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Mr. Chairman,

         16  Madam Chairwoman, I think we sat on this Committee

         17  five years, almost six years ago, and we talked

         18  about this, and we talked about the barge and we

         19  were told that the barge would not be in existence,

         20  because there would not be a problem with that, and

         21  we were kind of given some guarantees. But just for

         22  the record, what does Spofford hold in capacity?

         23                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: The capacity

         24  for Spofford had been 289.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: 289, right?
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          2  And Brooklyn was how much?

          3                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: You mean the

          4  new Brooklyn facility?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Yes.

          6                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Each facility

          7  is 129, capacity is 258.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: So, in simple

          9  math we are at 158 -- or 258. In other words, we

         10  actually built two facilities, and this is no

         11  reflection on you, believe me, Commissioner, in

         12  three administrations ago when they had all of these

         13  great ideas and they were all out for the youth, and

         14  I could be criticized by my colleagues, but when

         15  everybody was worried about solving problems, did

         16  anyone do mathematics? Did anyone figure out that a

         17  facility, which you are going to replace has a

         18  larger bed capacity than the two facilities you are

         19  going to build? And that was my biggest shock when I

         20  went into the Brooklyn facility. It is a beautiful

         21  facility, it had a lot to offer to the young people

         22  that were going to be using it, and I thought it was

         23  a great location because it can serve people by

         24  public transportation -- correct me if I am wrong.

         25  But why wasn't it built to a capacity, even just as
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          2  equal what we already had? And I can't in any way

          3  comprehend, if anyone in previous administrations,

          4  and i am not trying to knock Koch or Dinkins, did

          5  anyone ever figure out that they were building two

          6  facilities, not one, two, that couldn't even take

          7  headcount of the one facility that we all knew

          8  outlived its time?

          9                 And you know, in reality, and I went

         10  through it personally with my own house, you buy

         11  something and you try fixing it up, you spend more

         12  money repairing it than knocking the damn thing

         13  down, taking a beautiful picture of it, send copies

         14  to everybody, but level it and put it in a facility

         15  that can service.

         16                 You know, I had a brother that died

         17  of an overdose of drugs, and I say it publicly, and

         18  the reason he died is because there was a thing

         19  called the Rockefeller Program, that stunk, because

         20  it did not reach far enough into the problems. And a

         21  lot of young men and women died of drugs with

         22  needles in their arms, and a lot of politicians said

         23  they were sympathetic and they would cry and they

         24  tear, when that person needed not just physical

         25  help, but they needed mental help. And locking
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          2  people up and housing them may get them off the

          3  street as a temporary solution, but unfortunately in

          4  our facilities, and even in our state facilities,

          5  even our federal facilities, I think we create more

          6  problems, we let them out.

          7                 My only question is, why don't we now

          8  try to fix the major problem? Knock the damn thing

          9  down and build a new one if that is the answer? Or

         10  maybe we should be in more schools, and I am not

         11  putting the burden on you personally, but you know,

         12  maybe we should be in more schools and working maybe

         13  with the clergy and working with the community-based

         14  organizations that are legit, to try to get an

         15  outreach before they get to that level.

         16                 And that is why I asked the question

         17  about drugs and alcohol and other problems like

         18  that. You know, I just want to say it, it is a

         19  personal thing, and it hurts me to say it sometimes,

         20  but I lost a son in a car accident who never used

         21  drugs, never used alcohol, 18 years old, because two

         22  young kids decided to steal a car, they were high on

         23  crack, the police chased them and his car got hit.

         24  By total accident he got killed, 18 years old. I

         25  lost a brother because he believed he was strong and
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          2  tough enough to fight heroin and he could do it, and

          3  he died. And for years I hear people saying, well,

          4  you know, the problem stems, we grew up in the same

          5  house, same mother and father, ate the same foods,

          6  hung out with the same people - I don't know why he

          7  -- he is actually more dead than alive, my brother,

          8  and it comes to my mind that we are building

          9  prisons, whatever you want to call them they are

         10  still prisons, or we are building houses of

         11  detention, but are we getting to the root of the

         12  problem?

         13                 When we have them there, what are we

         14  doing to get into them, to try to find out what is

         15  your problem? Why do you want to use drugs, why do

         16  you want to be a problem? And I hate to sound like a

         17  preacher, I hate to sound like that, and I am not

         18  blaming you, believe me. Because this thing goes

         19  back, I am 52 years old, this thing goes back 30

         20  years, I am a baby, but I mean honestly speaking,

         21  and I appreciate your report, but I just can't

         22  understand how we build facilities that can't even

         23  fit what we have, and why aren't we reaching out to

         24  the kids before they get to that problem? Really

         25  before they get to the problem?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: I would

          3  indicate that there is no way that I can venture to

          4  make or comment on the decisions that were made 15

          5  years ago, obviously I was not there, I don't know

          6  the variables that went into the decision-making

          7  process.

          8                 I would be able to say that when I

          9  arrived we had a very serious problem that I had to

         10  address and I feel that we did the best that we

         11  could, and I appreciate that.

         12                 Part of my testimony today also was

         13  to really begin to sort of get at the point that you

         14  are making, that we philosophically in our agency

         15  have a responsibility for both custody, the young

         16  people that we must detain, because the Court has

         17  made a determination that they must be detained, but

         18  also care.

         19                 And part of what we have been doing

         20  is looking at ways to enhance the services that we

         21  provide. We provide on-site schooling, we got the

         22  Board of Education to come in to operate out

         23  schools, to improve the quality of education that is

         24  being provided. We have expanded our health and

         25  mental health services and we are going to continue
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          2  to expand that. We are looking at substance abuses

          3  and intervention strategies as well. We provide

          4  recreation. We are very selective about the

          5  community-based organizations that we bring into,

          6  you know, we bring in to work with our population.

          7                 And the other thing that we have

          8  done, as we have indicated, Councilman, is that we

          9  have grown our prevention budget as well, which is

         10  something that we believe is important.

         11                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON:

         12  Commissioner, just a minute. Council Member Stabile

         13  is anxious to make one further remark and then I

         14  have to go to the other Council members.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: It is a nice

         16  remark.

         17                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Go ahead,

         18  Council Member Stabile.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: I want you to

         20  know something - I wish you would stick around for

         21  another 20 years or 30 years, because your ideas

         22  sounded very sincere and they sound very true. But I

         23  just want to say something: Locking up a young man

         24  or a young woman is totally not the answer. Unless

         25  we can get into them and know what their problems
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          2  are, we are never, ever going to solve it. And I am

          3  glad you are very sincere about it, but I keep

          4  asking myself, 20 years ago didn't anyone think of

          5  asking a child about drug abuse, or alcoholism,

          6  because they had to know it existed.

          7                 So, I applaud you and your staff for

          8  doing it, and there has been a change, and I stand

          9  behind you in anything I can do to help. I want you

         10  to know that. Thank you.

         11                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: I appreciate

         12  it.

         13                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Thank you,

         14  Council Member Stabile. And I would dare to say that

         15  that is a great philosophical discussion that we

         16  would have to have in regards to that because I am

         17  sure many of us share your same concerns in regard

         18  to our own children not getting care, and not

         19  getting the kind of resources that they need to be

         20  able to be whole persons, and I think there are many

         21  reasons why that has not happened. But in regards to

         22  Rockefeller drug laws, I think that perhaps you

         23  might prevail upon the Governor of the State of New

         24  York. There are people who are advocating for the

         25  look at again the Rockefeller drug laws, so that
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          2  that is something we can work on collectively

          3  together. We can have a bipartisan effort in that

          4  regard.

          5                 Council Member Cruz.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: Thank you very

          7  much, Madam Acting Chair.

          8                 Welcome, Commissioner, Deputies and

          9  staff. I was, and I want from the outset to very

         10  clearly say, I was one of those very apprehensive

         11  people that you know very well, Commissioner, was

         12  apprehensive about the closing of Spofford, the roof

         13  repairs of Spofford, the rehabilitation of certain

         14  sections of Spofford, the opening of Vernon C. Bain

         15  barge. So, let's start with that.

         16                 I never felt that we were building,

         17  or getting, you know, like two for the price of one

         18  with the new construction on the two facilities,

         19  both in Brooklyn and the Bronx. I thought it was

         20  really horrendous to say the least. So, I agree with

         21  so much of your statement, but I am going to focus

         22  specifically on Vernon C. Barge. I would like to

         23  know to date what the timetable is, are we closing

         24  it? What is going to actually happen with the barge?

         25                 I am going to start with that because
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          2  I have a host, and it is all about the barge, I want

          3  to know the timetable, I want to know what the

          4  census is, what are we doing with Spofford. So, I am

          5  going back to what I was doing, as you said, for X

          6  amount of administrations.

          7                 Could we run very specifically? And

          8  if you want specific questions, we have them, and it

          9  is: Does the Vernon C. Mason, VCB, Vernon C. Bain

         10  continue to operate as the short-term operation, or

         11  a short-term solution, to address the immediate need

         12  for additional capacity? Does that happen now?

         13                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: We had

         14  indicated, Councilwoman, when I came before the

         15  Committee, that I wanted to go into a leasing

         16  relationship with the Department of Correction to

         17  utilize Vernon C. Bain for a period of, I think it

         18  was 15 to 18 months, while we renovated three wings

         19  of Spofford, to return to Spofford.

         20                 The Department of Design and

         21  Construction is overseeing the construction of

         22  Spofford, that has been happening in a very timely

         23  basis. Barring some really remote, unforeseen

         24  situation, we anticipate that we will be vacating

         25  Vernon C. Bain by the end of the year.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: By the end of

          3  the year, because I remember the last time you came

          4  you had said, oh, it is temporary and it just keeps

          5  expanding. I want to hear that --

          6                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Actually, not

          7  really expanded. We are doing this within the time

          8  frame that we said, which was 15 to 18 months.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: Okay.

         10                 Do you plan to move any of the

         11  inmates from Vernon C. Bain, the Vernon C. Bain

         12  barge to Spofford?

         13                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Obviously

         14  when we make the decision to move, the way that we

         15  will do that is, (a) we will try to reduce the

         16  census as much as possible at Vernon C. Bain. We can

         17  do that through a variety of means, one of them is

         18  to work cooperatively with the State Office of

         19  Children and Family Services. The Vernon C. Bain

         20  serves as a central location to keep juveniles, but

         21  we also keep young people that have been placed on

         22  OCSF facilities. So we will work with them so that

         23  they will move those youngsters that are ready to be

         24  placed in state facilities and we will have a

         25  variety of means of trying to reduce the census as

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            94

          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2  much as possible, but at the end of the day there

          3  will probably be some young people that will

          4  transfer from Vernon C. Bain to Spofford.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: What is the

          6  census as of this moment at the Vernon C. Bain

          7  barge?

          8                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: It is 75

          9  today.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: Today. And the

         11  maximum I think we had said would be 100; is that

         12  correct?

         13                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: The maximum

         14  is 100 and it has never exceeded 100. That was a

         15  commitment that I had made to not only OCSF, but to

         16  the City Council and to advocates.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: Yes, you did.

         18  And before we go any further, I do want to commend

         19  you and I am very happy, Commissioner, that, yes, we

         20  have expanded the role of DJJ to include some very

         21  important spokes, and that is the Board of Ed, the

         22  drug abuse and Department of Health, Mental Health,

         23  all of that. Yes, we have gone a lot further than we

         24  were before, but we have miles to go before we rest.

         25  And I think a lot of it would make a lot of us on
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          2  the City Council more comfortable if we knew what is

          3  really going to happen with the Spofford facility,

          4  and that we are phasing out the barge and the whole

          5  bit. So, that is why I am kind of focusing on the

          6  barge and Spofford because we have been discussing

          7  it for too damn long.

          8                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: I would

          9  indicate that I believe we have contacted the City

         10  Council, and one of the things that we are doing is

         11  we are arranging a site visit I believe the week,

         12  the second week or the third week of December. We

         13  would invite all City Council members and the

         14  Committee to come out and take a look at the

         15  renovations that Spofford has undergone. As I have

         16  indicated, our plans will be to vacate Vernon C.

         17  Bain and to move into the renovated Spofford by the

         18  end of the year.

         19                 As part of this, I also think that it

         20  was -- we were very pleased that we were also able

         21  to deliver to the South Bronx a brand new youth

         22  community preventive center, and there will be a

         23  ground-breaking for that in the immediate future.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: I certainly know

         25  about the facility, and, yes, I am happy about it.
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          2  It was desperately needed, as we need youth

          3  components in facilities all over the City, all

          4  right? I agree with you that the answer to

          5  addressing the problem with youth is certainly not

          6  locking them up, you know, it is finding

          7  alternatives. So it is one.

          8                 Let me just ask one --

          9                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Your final

         10  question, Council Member.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: Okay.

         12                 With regards to DJJ itself, how many

         13  youth would you say DJJ has evaluated and found

         14  eligible for the non-secure detention as of January

         15  of 1999 to today?

         16                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: We actually

         17  evaluate all admissions that come into DJJ that come

         18  with an open remand or a specific NSD remand. So

         19  they are evaluated.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: But how many? Do

         21  we have a number, an idea, a guesstimate?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: In a given

         23  year, Councilwoman, to give you a sense for a year

         24  period?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: I am asking for,
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          2  you know --

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: Yes, well,

          4  let me give you a year, because that is the easiest

          5  --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: Yes, good.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: There are

          8  about 1,800 open remands that come into the system

          9  at any given year. Of our total admissions of over

         10  5,000, about 1,800 are open.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: Okay. And this

         12  was a two-part question, Commissioner.

         13                 Do we have additional plans to

         14  renovate any other wings at Spofford?

         15                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: I want to

         16  comment on a couple of things, Councilwoman.

         17                 One is that when I arrived at the

         18  agency, there were currently a shortfall in

         19  non-secure detention. Our capacity at the time I

         20  believe was 75, because the Department had made a

         21  decision which I think rightly so to not renew two

         22  contracts because of alleged financial

         23  improprieties.

         24                 One of the first orders that I gave

         25  was to replace those two NDS contracts and add a
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          2  third, so last year we increased our capacity from

          3  75 to 115. This year, this year, because we continue

          4  to analyze our population, we made the decision to

          5  add an additional four group homes to non-secure

          6  detention. Three of them have already been open and

          7  the fourth will be opening shortly, and that will

          8  take our capacity to 152.

          9                 The other thing that I would add is

         10  that, it is important to know that the agency really

         11  has a two-fold mission, and that our mission is

         12  really to protect public safety and also to try to

         13  provide quality, care and custody to young people

         14  that are in our system because judges have made a

         15  determination, utilizing their judiciary discretion

         16  that they need to be detained.

         17                 At any given time philosophically, we

         18  look at young people and we do know that we have

         19  young people in the system that might benefit from

         20  rehabilitation, but we also -- and I do have to say

         21  this, do have young people that are rather dangerous

         22  that need to be detained, and it is important that I

         23  make that distinction because I don't want to leave

         24  an impression that our agency has a mission that is

         25  just rehabilitation.
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          2                 We, unfortunately, have young people

          3  in our system that are dangerous, who may have

          4  committed serious crimes, and in that instance, it

          5  is our responsibility and obligation to the citizens

          6  of New York City to be able to maintain them in

          7  detention.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: Commissioner, I

          9  just want to interrupt you. I don't think anybody on

         10  this Council is saying that all of the youngsters

         11  that get locked up are, you know, wonderful

         12  youngsters. We know there are different degrees as

         13  there are in illnesses and so forth and so on.

         14                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Understood.

         15                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Okay?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: No. I still

         17  didn't get your response to my question. I asked are

         18  there any further plans for renovations at Spofford?

         19                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: We do not

         20  have plans at this point to do any further

         21  renovations beyond the three wings that were

         22  renovated.

         23                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Thank you.

         24                 Council Member Perkins, did you have

         25  a question?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Yes.

          3                 The community-based facility

          4  generally speaking, whether they are yours or

          5  anybody else's, tend to raise concerns, the

          6  neighborhood NIMBY type of concerns, if you will. It

          7  is very unfortunate because very often those

          8  concerns are exaggerated and alarmist unnecessarily.

          9  And I am wondering in that regard, how are you

         10  managing to overcome those types of concerns? What

         11  initiatives are we taking or should we be taking to

         12  help mitigate those types of alarms, in terms of the

         13  facilities that you presently have, and in terms of

         14  any facilities that you may intend on building in

         15  the future?

         16                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Are we

         17  speaking, Councilman, specifically about NSD, the

         18  ones that we have been siting like within the last

         19  couple of years?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Yes.

         21                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Yes.

         22                 Well, we really do it through a

         23  competitive process. We put out a competitive

         24  process Citywide so we do not necessarily target any

         25  particular geographic area. What is important to us
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          2  is that we have a community-based organization that

          3  can respond to us and be able to have site control

          4  of a building.

          5                 We tend to focus on community-based

          6  organizations that have (a) a familiarity with

          7  working with young people, that have some

          8  familiarity working with the juvenile justice

          9  population, that also again bring a comprehensive

         10  array of services because we like organizations that

         11  have other services available that they can use as

         12  in-kind contributions.

         13                 We generally have supported the

         14  organizations as necessary as they go through the

         15  community process. It has been our experience also

         16  that once communities understand the nature of our

         17  group homes, that some of their fears tend to be

         18  less, you know, they tend to have less concerns

         19  rather because our facilities, our group homes are

         20  structured in such a way that young people are

         21  generally there, unless they are going out for

         22  formal activities, like school or what have you. So,

         23  we do not have in our group homes an open door

         24  policy that young people, you know, they are really

         25  in custody, although it is a less restrictive
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          2  environment.

          3                 In most instances the organizations,

          4  we have been able to pick premiere organizations

          5  like St. Christopher Oddely, which is a very well

          6  known youth agency, you know, obviously Boys Town,

          7  we have picked organizations, Leake and Watts, that

          8  have good, strong roots with the community.

          9                 That is not to say that we don't have

         10  problems on occasion when we have needed to sit down

         11  with the community groups and community-based

         12  organizations to resolve problems and we have done

         13  that.

         14                 I have also made it very clear, me

         15  and my chief of staff, that we tend to monitor any

         16  kind of community complaints or problems, and we

         17  have given access to local officials to be able to

         18  have access to us, if they have any concerns.

         19                 That is the way that we have done the

         20  management of it.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Do they have

         22  advisory boards, community type advisory boards

         23  relating to these facilities?

         24                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: The NSDs tend

         25  to be very small home environments. They are like
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          2  max 12 beds, and they do not have -- the

          3  organization may have an overall advisory board, I

          4  am sure that most of these organizations have

          5  boards, I don't know if there is any specific

          6  advisory board for the NSDs.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: One final

          8  question.

          9                 Recently there was a lawsuit filed on

         10  behalf of the children and youth by the Legal Aid

         11  Society of New York City, and according to an

         12  article printed in the New York Times, on September

         13  11th, which stated "lawyers for the Legal Aid

         14  Society of New York would file suit on behalf of the

         15  children, said that everyday anywhere from three to

         16  50 children who should be sent to group detention

         17  homes are instead locked up in jail."

         18                 What is your agency's position with

         19  regard to this particular case?

         20                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: This is

         21  currently in litigation. And as I have indicated,

         22  one of the first amendments that was made was to try

         23  to expand non-secure detention, which I think that I

         24  have done successfully, I have more than doubled

         25  non-secure detention, but because of the pending
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          2  litigation I am not really in a position to be able

          3  to comment on the case.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: All right.

          5  Thank you very much.

          6                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Thank you

          7  very much, Council member, for your concerns and

          8  questions.

          9                 I want to go, first of all,

         10  Commissioner, I would like to commend you and your

         11  staff for the initiative that you have taken thus

         12  far in terms of the collaborations with the various

         13  agencies that can help our children, and it is quite

         14  obvious that you have moved forward with that, and

         15  of course with the expansion of the reduced

         16  children's violence program and the aftercare

         17  program as well. I just wanted to say that you have

         18  moved forward.

         19                 And of course, many of the questions

         20  that my colleagues have asked are centered around

         21  concerns regarding the barge and also the expansion

         22  of Spofford, which we recognize as taking place as a

         23  result of not having, you not going to be on the

         24  barge after the end of the year, as you said, and we

         25  are going to move forward in the expanded renovated
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          2  space at Spofford.

          3                 Let me ask you this question: In

          4  regards to the -- according to the MMR, there was

          5  objective, conduct a minimum of 1,000 unannounced

          6  searches for contraband in secure/non-secure

          7  detention facilities to create the safest possible

          8  environment. I understand that the searches were

          9  done. Could you tell me, what were the results of

         10  those searches, in the significance and effort to

         11  keep the facilities safe?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GLASS: We

         13  routinely search the dormitories. We have exceeded

         14  the limit of the searches. I don't have the

         15  information available, but we have exceeded the

         16  total amount of searches that were indicated in the

         17  MMR.

         18                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: What were

         19  the results of those searches, sir?

         20                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: In most

         21  instances, which I am very pleased to say, when we

         22  conduct searches, is we find very little contraband

         23  or problems. It is a security deterrent measure that

         24  we generally use within the facilities. Very seldom

         25  do we really find any serious contraband in
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          2  searches.

          3                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Okay.

          4                 Now, how does that work in terms of

          5  the -- you do that also in the non-secure

          6  facilities, as well?

          7                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Yes.

          8                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: And your

          9  results have been negative to much extent you would

         10  say?

         11                 I am just saying, that within the

         12  non-secure facilities, are you saying that you have

         13  not come forth with any kind of -- in the secure

         14  facilities you said no contraband.

         15                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: No, I didn't

         16  say no.

         17                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Oh, okay.

         18  Well, let's say minimal.

         19                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: It depends on

         20  how you define contraband as well. I mean, certainly

         21  the things that we would be worried about are drugs,

         22  weapons, things of that nature.

         23                 In the time that I have been

         24  Commissioner, that is not something that you see

         25  happen very often. On occasion you can have a young
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          2  person come in that may have a razor blade, may have

          3  drugs, but it is not something that is a serious

          4  problem within the facility.

          5                 You have other kinds of contraband,

          6  and by definition food in your room could be

          7  contraband. So that is why I would say serious

          8  contraband has not been a factor within secure

          9  detention.

         10                 Non-secure detention, I don't have

         11  the statistics. I would have to take a look. We do.

         12  I am being told that it is relatively the same in

         13  non-secure detention, as well.

         14                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Okay.

         15                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: So, we have

         16  not seen a situation where -- I would say it the

         17  other way, having the searches I think serves as a

         18  deterrent, and that our residents know there are

         19  some consequences and accountability with respect to

         20  maintaining a safe environment.

         21                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Okay, let me

         22  ask you this question, Commissioner: Have we had any

         23  young people to run away from our facilities, group

         24  homes, or escape from Horizon or the other? I am

         25  blocking. You have Horizon and the Bristol Street --
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          2                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Crossroads.

          3                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Yes,

          4  Crossroads. Okay.

          5                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Right.

          6                 Yes, in June, I believe it was June

          7  8th or 9th, we had I believe it was 48 juveniles,

          8  eight staff, in the recreation yard, we had a

          9  juvenile who at that time was able to scale the

         10  facility and escape. We responded, immediately

         11  contacted NYPD. NYPD mobilized a wide search for

         12  that youngster, and he was apprehended a week and a

         13  half later in Manhattan.

         14                 Non-secure detention, non-secure

         15  detention is essentially analogous to a group home

         16  setting. It is a home setting so you don't have the

         17  security that you have within secure detention. So,

         18  the security and the monitoring of the young people

         19  is simply done by staff. So there are occasions

         20  where we do have juveniles that will abscond from a

         21  group home and that is something that we look at and

         22  analyze on a regular basis.

         23                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Is that

         24  immediately called into central? Is that the way it

         25  happens in our secure facilities?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: Yes, our

          3  policy is that any time a juvenile leaves non-secure

          4  detention, that it is automatic report to the

          5  Executive Director who notifies the Deputy

          6  Commissioner and then I get notified, and that

          7  happens right away. And we also notify the Police

          8  Department because this is a young person that has a

          9  pending case.

         10                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Surely.

         11                 My final question has to do with the

         12  educational collaboration that you have with the New

         13  York City Board of Education, and I didn't see any

         14  indication in terms of what is the curriculum

         15  development, what is the curriculum that is used and

         16  how is that?

         17                 I know many of the children you have

         18  were short-term and then there are some children

         19  that are there for longer periods of time; could you

         20  explain that to me, Commissioner?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: Yes, I can

         22  actually talk about that. It is something that we

         23  spent a lot of time, as you know, Councilwoman. Last

         24  year was the first year that the board operated our

         25  school. We were very lucky to get some very skilled
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          2  staff from the Board that are experienced working

          3  with this population, and they had knowledge of a

          4  lot of curriculum development issues. What they do

          5  is they do what they call modular curriculum.

          6                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Modular

          7  curriculum.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: Modular

          9  curriculum. Because as you said, we have some kids

         10  that come in, stay only a few days, others that stay

         11  very long, so what you want to do is try to develop

         12  a curriculum that kind of gets to that issue.

         13                 So, some kids will stay a few days,

         14  get a piece of that module, they will get the

         15  basics, math, science, English. Other kids that are

         16  going to stay longer, the modules are approximately

         17  eight weeks. They can actually go through a couple

         18  of module cycles and get credit. This is something

         19  that was actually new when we ran the school that

         20  wasn't possible.

         21                 Now, if the Board runs it, those kids

         22  can actually get credit for return to their home

         23  school when they do leave detention.

         24                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Even if the

         25  child is there under ten days, they get some
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          2  schooling? What do they get?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: Kids that

          4  are in detention less than ten days are run in a

          5  program that we operate directly with our staff.

          6  They don't enter school until the tenth day.

          7                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Okay. I

          8  would like to talk with you further about that so I

          9  can get the logistics for that.

         10                 Are there any further questions from

         11  my colleagues?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: Yes.

         13                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: First, again, I

         15  want to be able to mention, Commissioner, that I was

         16  extremely impressed with the reduction in overtime

         17  and the expansion of staffing, which obviously has

         18  helped decrease overtime. And what I wanted to ask

         19  you was a question with regard, you said that the

         20  non-secure detention is a very restricted type of,

         21  you don't, you are allowed school but it is

         22  monitored. Children can't just come in and out when

         23  they feel like it; am I correct?

         24                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: That's

         25  correct.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: And when they

          3  leave or they scale or, you know, just abscond, as

          4  you said, we would notify the PD. Could you tell me

          5  what does the Police Department do? Do they bring

          6  them back to the group home? What action is then

          7  taken.

          8                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: It ha been my

          9  experience that young people, when they abscond from

         10  group homes, go generally one place and it is

         11  usually home. So we have circumstances sometimes

         12  where their parents bring them back, we have

         13  circumstances where the Police Department may

         14  apprehend them. So there are different circumstances

         15  that are played.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER APPEL: We know

         17  how many kids abscond.  In fact, we report that in

         18  the MMR. But, you know, they come back in various

         19  ways, so I can't exactly tell you what happens when

         20  they come back. I do know that typically we would

         21  not keep that kid in NSD if they have absconded.

         22                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: We are

         23  required by the State Office of Children and Family

         24  Services to offer again mandated services to young

         25  people, whether they are in secure or non-secure
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          2  detention. So they are in school, we have a

          3  centralized school. They are taken to a centralized

          4  school for a full day of school every day. They have

          5  recreation services. We have case management

          6  services, so we do have services for them.

          7                 I don't want to give the impression

          8  that we are like losing like young people all the

          9  time, but on occasion. With all of our protocols,

         10  with all of our, with all of our emphasis on

         11  security and safety, with state-of-the-art systems

         12  that we have in place inherently in detention there

         13  are times when you are going to have incidents, and

         14  they happen from time to time.

         15                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON:

         16  Commissioner, one final question in regards to the

         17  ombudsman person; when would that person be coming

         18  on board? The third person?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GLASS: Interviews

         20  will be conducted tomorrow in fact in the selection

         21  process. We will pick a candidate tomorrow and

         22  subsequently --

         23                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: How many

         24  people have applied for that position?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GLASS: Actually
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          2  it is approximately seven.

          3                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON:

          4  Approximately seven people, okay. All right. Thank

          5  you very much, Commissioner.

          6                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: We actually

          7  had identified two previous -- we have two that we

          8  have already hired out of the three positions.

          9                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Yes, I know,

         10  I heard that.

         11                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: We were

         12  really delayed because we had identified two

         13  candidates that then were offered better jobs, so

         14  that we lost them and then have to go back to the

         15  drawing board and identify the two and now we are

         16  going to do the third.

         17                 CO-CHAIRPERSON ROBINSON: Okay, thank

         18  you.

         19                 My colleagues, any further questions?

         20                 Okay, Commissioner, thank you very

         21  much.

         22                 COMMISSIONER HERNANDEZ: My pleasure.

         23                 And I am looking forward to seeing

         24  you on the visit. It was indicated that we have

         25  arranged for a visit at Spofford.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Thank you very

          3  much, Commissioner.

          4                 We are going to take a 30-minute

          5  recess, continue with the Department of Employment.

          6  I want the record to note we had previously been

          7  joined by Council Member Quinn as well.

          8                 (Recess taken.)

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Good afternoon.

         10  This is a continued hearing of the Committee on

         11  Youth Services. My name is Ken Fisher, Council

         12  Member from Brooklyn. I previously introduced the

         13  other members of the Committee.

         14                 This portion of our hearing will

         15  address the Summer Youth Programs of the Department

         16  of Employment. The adult portion of the Department

         17  of Employment programs are covered under the

         18  Committee on General Welfare. This deals with the

         19  Summer Youth Employment Program and related programs

         20  only. The subject of this hearing is the Charter

         21  mandated Mayor's Management Report, and I would ask

         22  the folks from the Department of Employment to

         23  identify themselves and please proceed with your

         24  testimony.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO: Good
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          2  afternoon. Seated to my right is Hector Flores who

          3  is --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: First you have to

          5  identify yourself.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO: Okay. My

          7  name is Stan Diglio, Deputy Commissioner for

          8  Operations at the Department.

          9                 To my extreme right is Hector Flores

         10  of our Budget Fiscal Unit, and to my right is Deidre

         11  Pilgram, Executive Director for the Summer Youth

         12  Employment Project.

         13                 I appreciate the opportunity to

         14  appear before you this afternoon to discuss the

         15  Fiscal 1999 Mayor's Management Report for DOE and

         16  how it relates to you.

         17                 I will now make a brief statement and

         18  would be pleased to answer any questions afterward.

         19                 The Department of Employment's

         20  mission is to provide New York City employers with a

         21  qualified and skilled work force by offering

         22  eligible City residents a full range of job training

         23  and placement services.

         24                 The Department implements and

         25  oversees a system of occupational assessment, skills
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          2  training, educational remediation and job placement

          3  of the City's unemployed and underemployed residence

          4  by funding a network of contractors with primarily

          5  federal Job Training Partnership Act Funds.

          6                 For the summer of 1999, the

          7  Department received $47.2 million in JTPA funds for

          8  its summer employment program.

          9                 In addition, $7.4 million in City tax

         10  levy dollars, supplemented SYEP through the Job

         11  Opportunities for Youth Program, JOY. These levels

         12  of funding allow the Department to service a total

         13  of 50,499 youth, ages 14 through 21 this past

         14  summer.

         15                 This far exceeded our plan to serve

         16  40,500 youth. Of this total, 40,247 were funded by

         17  JTPA Title 2B funds and 10,252 through City tax levy

         18  dollars.

         19                 As a measure to improve service

         20  delivery to youth enrolled in SYEP, the Department

         21  enhanced the training up to 300 seasonal workers for

         22  SYEP employed by DOE.

         23                 Seasonal workers receive training

         24  through the private industry council and its service

         25  works curriculum. Seasonal staff receive training
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          2  and staff communication and customer service skills.

          3                 During the summer of 1999, the YES

          4  Commission forwarded $650,000 to DOE to pay YES

          5  Commission participants.

          6                 The YES Commission was responsible

          7  for the placement of youth in private sector jobs.

          8  DOE acted as the fiscal agent for payroll and

          9  offered staff support in enrolling and screening

         10  participants for placement.

         11                 During Fiscal Year 1999, DOE's School

         12  Year Program exceeded its planned enrollment by

         13  enrolling 1,718 youth. Participants were served

         14  through a network of 17 contractors and received

         15  services that included work-based learning,

         16  internship and vocational counseling. These services

         17  were provided after the regular school day.

         18                 This program was funded by 1.029

         19  million dollars in City tax levy funds.

         20                 In May of 1999, the Department issued

         21  a request for expressions of interest for its youth

         22  and mature workers training funds. As a result of

         23  this solicitation, the Department selected 28

         24  contractors. Of this number, 23 are youth service

         25  providers.
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          2                 Services commenced on July 1, 1999,

          3  and the planned enrollment is 3,552 youth.

          4                 Participants will receive job

          5  training in fields such as computer technology,

          6  sheet metal apprenticeship and customer service. The

          7  end goal is permanent and unsubsidized employment

          8  for our youth.

          9                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         10  appear before this Committee, and we will be glad to

         11  answer any questions that you may have.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Thank you.

         13                 The MMR, on page 283, under the

         14  objective, provide occupational and job-readiness

         15  training to 1,597 youth through the Department's

         16  Core Youth Training Program, achieving both a job

         17  placement rate and employability enhancement outcome

         18  rate of at least 50 percent.

         19                 The actual number of youth served

         20  under that program appears to have been 1,443, about

         21  ten percent less than the objective, and what

         22  accounts for that discrepancy?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO: This

         24  issue came up last year. As a matter of fact it was

         25  noted in other agency programs for youth, the
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          2  numbers weren't what the projections had manifested.

          3                 We intensified our recruitment

          4  efforts, we also increased our contracting this

          5  year, and this year we will be increasing the

          6  enrollment number for youth considerably. It was

          7  down last year and we put a lot more effort into

          8  recruitment and outreach, and this year we have a

          9  high enrollment number that is planned and so far it

         10  is manifesting itself through the first quarter of

         11  the fiscal year.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Well, actually

         13  the Fiscal Year 2000 plan calls for you to double

         14  the number of young people served under this program

         15  than last year. Are you going to be able to attain

         16  that?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO: Yes. We

         18  were able to increase our allocation for 2C money.

         19  Through a state mechanism we were able to convert

         20  some additional monies that were for adults, and

         21  dislocated workers to our youth portfolio. This then

         22  enabled us to contract a considerably higher number

         23  of youth providers than we have in the past.

         24                 Starting July 1, we contracted with

         25  23 youth providers for training, which is
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          2  considerably higher than we have done in the past,

          3  and that is why there is a higher enrollment

          4  projection.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: The out-of-school

          6  youth pilot program was supported through I guess a

          7  federal grant and last year we were advised that DOE

          8  would be seeking a second grant, a continuation; can

          9  you update us on the status of that?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO: The only

         11  thing I could say is we did apply for these new

         12  monies that have been identified for a youth service

         13  center, and we submitted our application in

         14  September, we are still awaiting word as to the

         15  status of that application.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Is that for a

         17  specific location?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO: It is a

         19  defined empowerment zone in East and Central Harlem

         20  and in the South Bronx. It is very specific, which

         21  is the way the grant lays it out, and it is also for

         22  $50 million over a five-year span.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: With respect to

         24  the major, I guess, Summer Youth Employment Program,

         25  that is the biggest program, in addition to the job
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          2  opportunity itself, what type of educational and

          3  support services are provided to the young people?

          4                 MS. PILGRIM: At a minimum, 50 percent

          5  of our young people receive educational services for

          6  remediation and help with their math and their

          7  reading and they have contextual learning where they

          8  learn to relate the educational needs of their job

          9  to the educational needs for advancement and school.

         10  So, they are assessed as to how much they will need,

         11  and then they are assessed at the end to see how

         12  much they have gained throughout the summer through

         13  this educational services. There are some

         14  self-taught courses through the computer, and there

         15  are some tutoring, there is peer counseling and

         16  whatever needs are there they are referred to other

         17  needed services throughout the summer that are

         18  identified.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Should the report

         20  therefore include some objectives and mission

         21  indicators with respect to the effectiveness of

         22  those core services?

         23                 In other words, if you provide an

         24  assessment at the beginning and an assessment at the

         25  end, that should give you some sense of what is
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          2  working and what is not working; and are those kinds

          3  of statistics complied, and if they are, won't they

          4  not be included in the MMR?

          5                 MS. PILGRIM: The basic focus of the

          6  educational services are, as I said, to provide 50

          7  percent, and our focus is to see to it that they at

          8  least maintain their educational level from the time

          9  that they are in during the summer, so that when

         10  they return to school, that they are at least on

         11  level, that they haven't lost any ground during the

         12  summer months.

         13                 Now, as far as doing an overall

         14  assessment of the program as to how successful this

         15  is, we do know that we haven't really quantified it

         16  totally, but there may be something that we can look

         17  to do, but we have not. But we do assess the

         18  youngsters individually, but to put that into an

         19  overall programmatic analysis, that has not been

         20  done, no.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: And then

         22  similarly with respect to the Core Youth Training

         23  Program, the objective calls for an employability

         24  enhancement rate of at least 50 percent, and the

         25  numbers indicate that you actually exceed that by a
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          2  considerable amount, suggesting perhaps you should

          3  raise the bar on your objectives. But putting that

          4  aside, what efforts are made to analyze the 25

          5  percent that don't reach that level?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO: Let me

          7  say, first of all, we improve that employability

          8  enhancement indicator. It took a considerable

          9  effort, number one. In the past we relied very

         10  heavily on TAP centers, which we no longer do, and

         11  with regard to that area the results were not

         12  satisfactory as far as we were concerned.

         13                 Also there was a problem with

         14  reporting. We believe that a lot of it was not

         15  reported correctly or underreported.

         16                 Thirdly, with our youth training

         17  providers, they are much more effective in helping

         18  youth achieve what they call employability

         19  enhancement, which is the learning of occupational

         20  competencies that are then paired and these are

         21  tested and measured as to achievement.

         22                 Our training providers, our strictly

         23  training providers are very much more effective at

         24  accomplishing that. And as to the percentage that we

         25  are hitting and missing, I think now that we have
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          2  raised the bar, I think we have to take a closer

          3  look at that. That is the best I can say right now.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Okay.

          5                 Do any of my colleagues have any

          6  questions?

          7                 Council Member Clarke.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I seem to ask

          9  the same question of most agencies that come in; and

         10  that is to just get from you, especially since your

         11  agency does more than one kind of training, because

         12  adults get training too, and we are emphasizing

         13  youth training here, how do you use the MMR?

         14                 Apart from the fact that you come

         15  before us with it, does your agency have a specific

         16  purpose for doing the MMR, and for having the MMR?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO: Like any

         18  management report, we happily study the indicators,

         19  because the indicators are telling us which features

         20  of these programs are working satisfactorily and

         21  which are not.

         22                 Starting with the very basics such as

         23  we talked about a few minutes ago, enrollment of

         24  youth numbers, that is a good example where last

         25  year we fell under our projection, took some
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          2  corrective actions and were able to increase the

          3  money in our portfolio, increase the number of our

          4  training providers for youth and therefore project a

          5  higher enrollment number.

          6                 So, we use it for a continuous

          7  improvement instrument where we look at critical

          8  factors and try to do better.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: For the young

         10  people that get summer employment in particular, is

         11  there a tool that you use to assess based on the

         12  sites where they go, the numbers and the varieties

         13  of placements that they have and how those

         14  placements may even improve their skills in school?

         15  Are they placed based on interest? Are they placed

         16  just for a job?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER DIGLIO: Okay,

         18  Deidre.

         19                 MS. PILGRIM: Youngsters, as far as

         20  placement during the summer, they are placed based

         21  on skills and interest, so they are asked during the

         22  enrollment and the orientation process. We have what

         23  is called an Individual Service Strategy, an ISS,

         24  which is a living document which assesses these

         25  youngsters' needs, their interests, their employment
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          2  background, their educational background, and the

          3  jobs, where possible, are matched to those interests

          4  and their skills.

          5                 Understanding, of course, a lot of

          6  the youngsters, this is their first job, so they try

          7  where possible to match them to their interests.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Is there an

          9  evaluation of the work site? Is there an instrument

         10  that you use to evaluate the work site?

         11                 And if so, what is it? And is there a

         12  criteria by which you may refuse any work site for a

         13  young person, or for young persons?

         14                 MS. PILGRIM: Yes, all of our work

         15  sites are evaluated each year. We have a site

         16  assessment form that is -- not only that we monitor

         17  all of our sites throughout the program, so we as an

         18  oversight agency monitor so we have an assessment

         19  instrument that monitors the effectiveness, the

         20  supervision, making sure that it is true work

         21  experience being provided to the youngsters, their

         22  time and attendance is assessed and taken away in

         23  which it should. That is number one.

         24                 At the end of the program there is a

         25  site assessment form where we evaluate their
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          2  effectiveness throughout the entire summer, and as

          3  these instruments that are used and make a

          4  determination in future programs as to whether a

          5  site will or will not be used. So, if they have been

          6  ineffective, if they have not provided supervision,

          7  et cetera, they may be disqualified for the coming

          8  summer. So, yes, we do use that.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you very

         10  much.

         11                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Thank you very

         13  much.

         14                 Do any of my other colleagues have

         15  questions?

         16                 If not, we will conclude this

         17  portion.

         18                 Thank you very much.

         19                 This Committee will be holding

         20  another hearing on Thursday of this week dealing

         21  with the Workforce Investment Act impact on the

         22  Summer Youth Program. And I am sure we will be

         23  seeing many of you at that hearing, otherwise we are

         24  adjourned.

         25                 (Hearing concluded at 4:00 p.m.)
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